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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This annual report covers all of TMH’s
activities for the financial year, which
ended at 31° of March 2019. This report
aims to capture the information expected
by its shareholders and stakeholders. It is
also a mean for TMH to comply with the
rules and notifications issued by DICA
and the Securities Exchange Commission
of Myanmar.

Our financial data were audited by Tin
Latt and Associates according to the
MFRS standards.

Our non-financial data were collected to
fulfill TMH’s willingness to good corporate
disclosure practices.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Company Profile

Understanding our company

Mission

relationship with our customers

GomEigseom sondedeagdogsicoqs

' L

Vision : to provide the best telecommunication service and bring
convenience to the lives of Myanmar People.

a4PeSigod 1 meomntigiadieon soodagudeqeadlep ofeamiaypicug 5C
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- to provide high quality service while establishing a successful

- to build trust and loyalty with our partners.
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TMH offers technological solutions and
expertise to build, maintain, and operate

better communications infrastructures in

Myanmar.
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Build N Operate
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We help our clients — service providers and
end-users — to access more easily, reliable
data, faster, and ultimately to use them
better.

oReo50? opgaBel Clients gpigdeom ofeemnt

qeozanqps end-users qp:adad 38cguSonjgSeosen
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High-speed :
Mobile use
broadband
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Telecom Optical Top-up  Mobile
towers  Fiber cards App




ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 INECICHISCeIe]ys

2018/2019 overview

Highlights

The market conditions were challenging, and our revenues contracted last year to reach

MMK 8.93 billion compared to MMK 9.94 billion for FY 17/18.

The profitability of our operations decreased: our profit margin was 7.09% last year.

TMH invested significantly to expand the footprint of its operations and to build new assets

= We installed over 500 km of optical fiber, of which 99% operated by Myanmar GT
Broadband Co. Ltd, our associated company;

= We launched a mobile app to provide new services to our end-users, and within a
few weeks 20,000 people downloaded our app

The management team initiated a plan to improve the efficiency of our operations: as a

result, workforce productivity grew by 7% compared to last year, while the satisfaction

of our people reached 90%.

The quality and reliability of our services is paramount for TMH: last year, regardless of

our activities, at least 95% of our customers were satisfied, and the reliability of our

services exceed 99%.

20,000 people downloaded the Thi PP Lar mobile application which was launched in

February 2019.

TMH’s shares performed better than MYANPIX during the last financial year.

TMH has expanded its business into new ICT areas such as Extra Low Voltage (ELV)

systems. ELV systems integrate different kinds of technology: CCTV, Door Access, Fire

Alarm, Conference System.

We delivered some projects successfully for Fortune Plaza and shop house, The Century

Residence, Pun Hlaing Villa, LIASI Engineering Company, etc.

Highlights
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Key figures S
g 2 8.8 '8
Our revenues contracted We installed over 500 km of More than 95% of
to MMK 8.93 billion optical fiber, of which our customers are
99% are owned by our associate satisfied with our services
$ ﬂ\\\
We serve over 10,000++ We manufactured 69.1+ 120,000 peopI.e REIE
ith FT'TX luti million top-up cards for MPT connected to a high-speed
customers with our solution mebilclconntotion
o 020
o ] 7N
o L
Our new app has been Each trainee received on 90% of our employees are
downloaded 20,000 times average 40 hours of training satisfied with their work
since February 2019
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Our Values

Respect Honesty
a /_\

Gm:mﬁcﬁ
transparency

Accountability & reliability

Trust
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Continuous learning 03[o35¢
0990056[god Groconandong
[Key figures
=L &‘
0 accident in our We recycled 32% of TMH managed one case of
workplace the waste we produced fraud last year
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Analysis of TMH stock price

Chart 1
Comparison of the market value of TMH
(MMK millions) and Myanpix

Ratio TMH/YSX

On average, the market capitalization of the companies listed on the Yangon Stock Exchange
contracted by 17.3%. TMH performed better than the average listed company: its share price lost
8.6%. In other words, in a very challenging market, TMH’s shares performed twice better on average
as its peers. At the end of the financial year, TMH’s represented 6.43% of the market capitalization

vs. 5.81% a year ago.

60oop0qeigé §8§0750602336¢8:038 erqEio€amieammgaBypiel egEnRE3E3EGRS 0q.p% GagpsP5:30R
TMH opgBel quBomeqpgsiood ©.6% o0 eaqpspddfgtelops  onqlolopgadypal qbsgeagpoy) §§:0005
GomEsg830051 0065p5:3304¢E 22038886l ggpgpieam egpnzedaaé TMH opgaBel saguSomngp:aopd qbgEandgé
Hrropgdgpiel 200q0S0mgP005 $680 comEigiaopdur 9888apS coamsdeaadirt TMH mgadel egrogad
3Ea8Eqa0p5 00dsdmajopazt §.00% §aepe 6.6% §oropdi
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Chairman & MD interviews

What is your perception of the performance delivered by TMH last year?

Chairman: We are dealing with very challenging market conditions. Foreign investments in recent
years mostly drove the expansion of the ICT sector.During FY 16/17, foreign investors poured more
than USS 3 billion in the telecommunication sector. Last year, investments reached only USS 680

million compared to USS 901 million for FY 17/18. This drop impacted our industry.

As a consequence, the competition between Myanmar players became fiercer. As a result, some
projects were canceled because of alack of liquidity. However, we also saw a new type of competition
coming: some companies started to dump their price regardless of the quality of their work. These
two factors combined impacted our top line: our revenues contracted to MMK 8.93 billion this year
(see chart 2). However, the TMH share performed better than the average company listed on the

Yangon Stock Exchange, and this is a good signal for our shareholders (see chart 1).

TMH opga3§, ogbocpbefieccnégodeoiapiasad pgagd), coélgéupsogodypionomaecgfybucds

PRSI REE05BMeBUNBEedl gapial egEopodmac(geeeseogs §Ee3EFqdmLSI condomenmm§Seogen $E&[g:
qC:84g05qqpe3an: 20008:309)058200055¢ $5:0BEPRSCEE0ze0 Gogrgdlonudi j0ok- jvoq coasB303E:
8005990566000 sqpPizg0d 888 E:8eg 059005 Feedmedannss pooo coypIocacdi osdon qE:8g0sq
0MOM J00Q- 008 00 0N [§62005 Ieedon§ed aon poo 0§ $EaByE sacedmEed] conaod: Eoo 9§200§3000dH
:29c3oyeo:agnigon 0g8eondadnadesieogedl oo S203E00deepadedddlonad
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/ N wofpeocdoeony ogbeodiad  [ghedmgaBepisop:  BiEa3Ee8
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Evolutio of TMH revenues
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N B OO

10 - 26p032603:036[030093  eqpgSieaqpyeoy  cpdamogoncdi 38
20905569050 0g§eondaimgmaeed ol gpigrmaogjroondespoded
300051 9INsdIREd ofegm [gedeg 0§ oppo SqfSA
01 (@us o ¢ [goodsdlonnd) a8 eoodeopd:s TMH §, qudom

eqps$ieogon Yangon Stock Exchange ¢n§ojengtiol apgaldypsd,

FY18/19 FY17/18  FY16/17 cﬂ&:cﬁlﬁ%oocﬁ <‘[’>f{)sm&g.§e§m<ﬁ Gogclé]oocﬁu dom ﬂcﬁwoﬂﬁqp:

L | (%&) (] & W Other ) 2005 60,E:S03 205050009[gdoduSH (@0t o aa&fogpddl)

How do you plan to deal with those headwinds? What are TMH’s key competitive advantages?

Managing Director: TMH is a mission-driven company. For us, the quality of our solutions, and the
satisfaction of our clients are paramount. Whether we work to install, maintain or operate a tower,
a network of optical fiber or to produce top-up cards for our clients, in everything we do, we aim to

provide them with the best service.

Last year, the satisfaction rate of our clients exceeded 95%, the availability of our installation 99%,
and the satisfaction of our people 90%. | am very proud of these results because they are the results
of our continuous investment to build a leader in the Myanmar ICT sector. We invested significantly
also to develop our assets: they will fuel our growth tomorrow to develop and operate our own
optical fiber network (see exhibit 1). This will contribute to generate and secure steady revenues in
the future because our strategy is aligned with the Government strategy, which aims to establish a

digital in Myanmar by 2025 (see also page 16).

As a result, last year, we started to operate in Yangon, in Lashio and Taungyi areas (Shan state), in
Mawlamyine (Mon State) and Monywa (Sagaing). Our company is expanding the footprint of its
operations and its customer base. We plan to invest more to expand our optical fiber network in

almost all the Myanmar states and regions, which is fully aligned with our vision.

Finally, | am pleased to see that our capacity to manage our internal risks improved last year. Our
Internal audit team detected fraud, and they took immediate action. For the risks related to our
projects, we are also more selective, and this will help us to allocate TMH resources better, to seize
business opportunities faster, and ultimately to reinforce the profitability of our operations, which

is a priority for us as our profit margin decreased significantly last year (see chart 3).

10
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Ggbodypisé 0ob0cBBnuScBpbescnéddioocds TMH § [§EoraSopgadqpicocbona) =8m swioongedecgm
omeoplgducSs
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[58[s®1 [ggEB§:038:0m3[3Bg61 Optical Fibre og0uSo§:006e080md[gdlgd1 wSseglgoSonsooodapdeepsqomdlydlyd
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325000060 0g§600508 cngaRy, 03u53E optical fiber network o3 03:00050p6680oEEE] 0p8:sm603(gbEAN
(Exhibit 1 o3& [03000ln) 22§0005¢n B RNS esolegad eedaoodeu:dEw(gddlonudi saelopEieaqlioneon,;
RI§e005034, comgjomen Digital in Myanmar 2025 co&opssapBandesontesadgddonudn (eogqodsn o6 opé

@é&lu)

qodmesy osbmafordon qifgpdscd combihy confif gflgdecd obcofiEfst ebadtioiEicerf.e
c0dc§ieoy  0onEopSucdIclonudi ogfeotod Customer base seqeepr pEc§:dE:eepg,08pba3Eaesdoncdi
Q8005034 eqPesigdsEadn586dB8320305 [g§n8Eeens, [gpdsudSsadtieogen Optical fiber network og§aond
60R03 889,0388320305 §E:84{5056300305 BE0BS:6035/905002Aloo0S!

6500590232655 05000 0g8e05Bmedy, Internal Risk o3 comE:eonE:8608§386303320305 sqeaysOdoncdi
8605033, Internal audit sa8me0eg06960283(Gig05C:3a66p096800EQ053A0SH B8d03§:8005000503 risk
60RaBeon og§eondadumn B3aocBoonieggdamnadseognd TMH opgaR saqlimedieonad comsgsgnasepyjoon:

88300001 8ca3bcBEasmngodfglion Bigmieqpadlepaaglancubieagnd 38cqE[gSeraupseild: ogSeordodmgady,
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ey _ . . ( \
Exhibit 1 — Investing to build our future assets Chart 2
e Evolution of TMH'’s profit
(vs. FY 17/18) margin (%)
0% 16.90%
Number of kms of 280% -90%
optical fiber installed 15% 14.56%
Number of households 563% )
connected 10%
Number of business 972% 5%
connected

0%
. (V)
Bandwidth (Gbps) 700/) FY 18/19  FY17/18 FY 16/17

J
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You are mentioning a more challenging business environment. What steps do you take to

safeguard the shareholders’ value?

Chairman: As the Chairman of the Board, my main duty is to protect, develop, and sustain the value
of TMH for our 800+ shareholders. Our business requires considerable amounts of investments,

and without a long-term approach, we will not succeed to create value.

Our shareholding structure is concentrated: the 10 biggest shareholders own more than 90% of our
Company (see page 23). Therefore, it is important for us to engage with all of our shareholders,
even though who are holding a few shares of our Company. We need probably to explain to our
stakeholders how we plan to create value in the future, and how we are transforming their Company

to make it more future ready.

8§odlqprc) Buprospogboforby Ecoscgotofiipt quSamgbapd,soloh §§6unommt omocy mbicgbacont

31

PpGI 990533l parGodBiesd e00eMPED 2:0quSugEypsd), F20E3e[godaBomnzedBieggRd $E[GesE!
3803:00056820¢ pEe80rER0M0§§Aon0di cp§e025038, pbesingti8igdsguenan 2260353200883 832607 cpdess
[g000051 eqgEdea0305 $5sc0G§qE 1 0603503 63E[GESEWELIOdlos

§0500gE[03k 00 Bion 0RE 02503 0rgaRy, 0% 03BEBECo:Clonudi (eog0ds0 Jp 03¢ [035aN). S3dlelopE ogi§eondad
g, §oSumnsagodicadom JEadCoooy 2egqudSungCypieadsnol saofpooodedapamdimncgnd coodp38Edm
RI$60050320305 3266 05:0lonudI 0pI§E005030PERY, 329gSugEE0R03 MEMBIEsE 3257005600058 00sdieoy
08035005 3006031 2250005520305 900Scd380E20¢[gbesIEELdEB0me0303 gEg8c8d8geud

"As the Chairman of the Board, my main
duty is to protect, develop, and sustain
the value of TMH for our 800+

shareholders. Our business requires

considerable amounts of investments,
and without a long-term approach, we

will not succeed to create value."

NOO!IET  pPGdHI!esy ©00GMPED

2oqudomgleps, 30qEsa[goded  omazedE

eqqpd3C[Gesmt 38 odonodesn voeenEY
020$§Alo00di 8605035 cpiekion  qEEdosqep:  2600590008§3c832607 e gbooudi  eagpEdSIaoR0d
555008308981 0318600503 63:0E[GESEeLrdlo:
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What perspective for the coming months?

Managing Director: \We will continue to invest and to explore new business opportunities. We are
building with our strategic partner, a data-center in Myanmar. We want to get position for TMH not
only as a company which installing, maintaining and operating communication infrastructure but

also as a company which can take full advantage of the digitalization of the Myanmar economy.

We will succeed because TMH has the right assets to seize this opportunity: the skills and talents of

our people, the loyalty of our clients and suppliers, and the support of our shareholders.

3§0050009 0e0R3a0R05 9305cY agesiqdeoaoocds

3pbq)bg 05001 o8eo5d mesd Bigieaprobeiadep 3agCaacudigpiod 03:q, 858 qE:8{g0sqe0p vE83a0305
800500056800Eg05e5AlndI Bigninadengy cado3(8: Data Centre 0o6903c0pd: oopSeacnodagEd §iloocdi TMH
0 odlo3Eonpbesmndgls [gfgEod§:0864gEie¢ s00dog0deqeadlep I26[gdm680005353) oopdeannadlgtiapdesigps
28 [5e8Eeq, 8qidoncd [glgCe[gpicdeesadlep Bigieapapbesicogsngadd cvbeamtesanpd cpgaBondemlyd
§600p5q oS

RI$e02503 68E[gEea§erd ocdcdade0m; ogseortod TMH waseqedo) saqlienlgdeog[gdbo) saegquSuangCypsi
Bsgmsoadype loyal clients gpsaalgE 0§0obsqpsd), g&sea0nCapds ogeioqCeeny §esadd [gddlonudn

“We will continue to invest and to explore new
business opportunities. We want to position
TMH not only as a company installing,
maintaining, and operating communication
infrastructure but as a company which can
take full advantage of the digitalization of the

Myanmar economy.”

RISeod0d 3655 Bigrieqprodcsedlep 329Caa00s:
Py .88 of:3gosqecg pbencga’ sodbeodd
6800Eg0565$300051 TMH 02 0:dlo3E00p5e80005(gE:!
[glgEB&:a864gE:5E  s00SoguSeqeadlep  =ac[gd
326800053239 00p5ee00d[glnsesigpimlgl (¢S
£8¢q, 8qdoncd  [g[gCelgpicdoqpadep  Bipoqp
005c§:6033209053 (pbeeontesanpd crgaBondemjyd
§600p5q oS
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Delivering our vision

14

TMH operates 2 factories to manufacture top-up cards for MPT: one in Yangon and the
other one in Mandalay. We produced 69+ million of cards last year.

We are operating all around Myanmar, except in the Chin and Rakhine states where the
safety conditions are not met for our employees and subcontractors.

Thanks to our installations and the commitment of our people, hundreds of thousands of
Myanmar can communicate more conveniently.

We are distributing prepaid top-up cards in Yangon East-Region and Northern Shan State
where we cover totally 18 townships.

TMH 0pgB30005 MPT 220305 e§:eg[godonSgp:od 00odapdeamend§( ))9lgé copSucdesmégadaged §d
2051 00696g5080REG: 0009w LsEIED§IGB05mB03:0RE Jaloopdn wwelsbmeggodmsaedits
6.eBBudemyP 0055505
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gSeondodmmecBel  ondeoleusgypist  ofcodigpisi  [03p0Gi0bm3EeemEgISagpielopE  [g§wolgpSap
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& Optical Fiber

We started to operate our own FFTX network
in the following states and region:
1. Shan: Taunggy and Lashio
2. Mon: Mawlamyine
3. Sagaging: Monywa
4. Yangon
ORl§e9203 3000 0p5a003035E FFTX0p8q0503
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We reinforced our service in the following
region to serve our clients better: Bago and
Yangon.
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Opportunities& challenges

The ICT sector will structurally continue to grow

The development of the ICT sector in
Myanmar is quite spectacular. In less than
a decade, Myanmar people embraced
technology and became connected to
digital networks quickly (see chart 3).
Today, according to the same government
statistics, the Internet penetration rate is
40%, the Mobile broadband
penetration rate is 105%.

and

With more people connected to better
networks, the quantity of data needed will
surge, and investments to maintain,
the

infrastructures will be required.

upgrade, and develop current

Chart 3
Evolution of mobile phone
(millions)

53.4 million
Urbanisation
rate: 30%

14/15 16/17

0
13/14 15/16

Total Population
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Total Mobile

Total Internet Users
Broadband Users

21.4 million
Penetration:
40%

56.3 million
Penetration:
105%
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The Myanmar Government aims to digitalize the Economy

Under the patronage of Vice-President  googooBin§sdoSoBiopsl  smscusgelops  Sqdoodd  Bsgseeg
U Henry Van Thio, the Digital Economy  §[§seqge0r50032005 womgjumefgpod cobiopodeoy ee:eg§t
Development Committee developed a 38 Jooppsd cucsddl§roog coodeodaopdi
strategicroadmap, which was published

in February 2019.

This roadmap will contribute to channel 2R eonglorelpodeodiopans  ceabeomnmoniogede
the investments into building the peep sacfgdmaceoncdaspypiancg’d qE:fgdsqap: shcBieor
infrastructures needed. $Eopfeaquodgboopi
DE Goals for digital Current
s connectivity
. Unique mobile subscription 48% 55%
> MYANMAR DIGITAL ECONOMY Mobile network coverage
- 92% 98%

in % of population

N |
v
f ' Diekal Economy Development Committee Internet users in % of 40% 50%
/” population

Navigating uncertainty

The opportunities are real and sound. However, operating in a promising market is not a prerequisite
condition for success. The quality of management of our Company, our ability to execute our

strategy will be critical and shape our capacity to shape our future and unlock our growth potential.

Therefore, our Board of Directors, our top management allocate TMH’s resources carefully.
Particularly, our Company is working to diversify its main risks, and business activities to reduce its

exposure to the adverse evolutions of a specific sector.

326500005 [96098:8E82005 3agaac06:60mE:qP:0p5 §Ewe] 3208§0E§AlaopSn Beporl [§6gepdup anoBmoos(gioo:
GONGENR0D3265$32002:2000 630E[GEG320305 0elgd 83adg/050urcdeon cpgaBel 809839 260sa6a3:5E cpgaBal
9050022600 LuMq|eNgP:ad  32607EI00p5eEHeaNEgMISE[REI0 g ogSeorbalmgBel 325000503
060560 E[B: opgaBel 03:0005g[§gaacnizanno’d codigeo:Eepdsaaplgdoopdi

CEofE8 el ApBorssaobipish ogfaosioldh BaohierbaboyoloEd opgdisaaisGapicd wooSiplEE
8068008godaqo5aopdi sacn:a0fgé og§eoiodorgaBel Sa8medig8Ealggpiean: Flgroocdeodegest a3:0§nbess
00b9[g:8enl B30500:ge8Calgqpin?d crgpqeageaognd BignieqpradesigpiaBaopds a3igro00deods] apbeaontagod
§oopdu
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Business

Model

How do we create value?

og§eosbodopgaiel oo§Qigpiam: efoBioond

We build,
infrastructures in Myanmar for our clients or

maintain, and operate key

ourselves, to make it easy and convenient to

communicate.

Rse05030005  sooHogudegiagudopsasoleleoqs
:ae[gdeaceoncdmesdgp:  0opdeamnadfgla  [glgEads:

aB8gssC  pOesicopdoodeofgliodod Clients gp:
00520000 MHE0R05A (pdeeEagodoopdi

Clients

]
Business

: Partners :

Shareholders

—
it

Government

We strive to offer the best quality of
services to our clients and to deliver our
promises. We are convinced that our
quality - oriented approach will
contribute to consolidating our clients’
base.

TMH benefits from its business
partners: we can source from them the
best products and technology available.
Most importantly, they train our
engineers and technicians to ensure
that they can deliver the best quality of
services to our clients.

The skills and expertises of our people
are instrumental to deliver the added
value expected by our clients. As we are
dealing  with more  complex
solutions, TMH is investing to grow our
human capital and to offer to its
employees safe and attractive working
conditions.

We rely on our shareholders’ trust.They
are providing TMH with the capital
needed to build upits future. We are
accountable to them, and we disclose all
the required information in a timely
manner.

TMH aims to comply with all the
Myanmar laws, norms and regulations
relevant to its business, status and
sector. As a responsible company, TMH
assumes its tax duty to contribute to the
government budget.

caooSoReogS el aqpofarbenctés koo
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BioeSopotfEeSdoors:
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How do we share value?

ogecrodorgaliel cofdiapi} gjeog

18

To visualize how we share the value generated by our business, this chart indicates the share
of the financial flow between TMH and our majors stakeholders. We take our 2018/19

revenues as a Baseline to facilitate the comparison: for each stakeholder we indicate its share

compared to our revenues.

6370503¢ 6eH[gaonseom §8v005 TMH opgaBst GE:eliapdesaupdoodegopé 2a8mdluEuodaonoopdongp:
o 0083sqps 6p8B gieosfoyp: eudlgoonidlaopdi 0g§eo5ad opgaBel joon-op coamsdolaegod 3ac[gdy
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Strategic priorities

Focus

Instead of pursuing any opportunity, we choose to deal with our current resources. Therefore,

when we are allocating the resources of our Company, we have to maximize the value which will be

created by our investments for our Company, our shareholders, and stakeholders.

For the time being, we are prioritizing two capitals:

1.

Industrial. We are operating in a sector where the quality of the infrastructure is critical
for long-term success. Therefore, TMH is concentrating its resources to build a sound,
reliable optical fiber network. We will screen all the projects to select only those which
will meet our requirements in term of risks, potential revenues, and positive impacts on

Myanmar society.

Human. Without skilled engineers and talented managers, our company will not be able
to leverage its assets. Building skills, encouraging continuous learning are critical for
delivering excellent quality services and solutions to our clients, which will ultimately fuel

TMH’s revenues and profits.

R
Rl$eo05dmeaBaodd saglancodigpimaedon e[gdcacnigrdlgliclgdend maqtirlgdypimsedsac(gdy o38ogud
elgqeigt:a’ Broneoieamnigodagocloopdn dBelopé ogSeondodoonborgalel saqtiealgdypin? Feosaadqepog
RI$EBGmgBI 320g050gEqPsE Fpofpo00dedEanqgp: FIxdiEacg0dIo3alg0d [gogSicoqs qpdgudescntgad

ClaopSi

0093$03E 0g860050307gMB000 2683282500005 ( )z Bronieosnqd §oopSu
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JI

0059e3€ep vEcigp: -07000gPE8O3§:03E e3E[GCRaGa S 320305 2aqpSm603Gpd0E 00 226[gd 3268000533)
00p5680005(gE:00p5 ZaeqEiladpdzaeapPod adadonobesmnd(gliant og§bo3ngaBongd saeeidleommanogt
do€esmgadaqed§doopbiaddeomnclopé  ogi§bodaopd Eomeondelopligp:  0opbesmndondsotepogt
0303p580dqqean  §Ewneomn  saqpdmcagfybeoqs  GeonlgodagEd§dloopgdt  Bon3S:pbesgpiad
:eonEancopdecdepogt o0:gedCalgqps 0Eegqods sacummacongpst [GSepapaadesnopbieil ot comsgs
GozoeoSqP:eacdl ©oopde) 6sorEgoddlaopSi

opoomgCimnglimalgdap: - ogiogeomn  3EqClomypisé  =epbaagl:  [gpdoeom  oesqpgpie§d
Rseododel  32aCnlgdgpiad  [§EonCa0d:q8Cepd  gdiesmneapdypiad  [Eoneudgla  ©fs0056god
ao8ogerpengod  Fmxeofgl:s [9ETMH  opgadel  client gp:od  sa60mEsed:  306p032603)Gpd80000
o§cemnlaqpid  cu:m088eqesC ofegs  salgodegqpind  03{gE8Eeqr  IeOMEICORSEEHEENE§ELD
[g60laopS
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Efficiency

In a challenging business environment, companies which can operate with fewer resources get a
competitive edge. As a result, our Management team is now optimizing the way TMH works to

streamline our operations. It will provide two benefits:

1. Cost optimization. This will reinforce the profitability of our business. It will ultimately

give us more margin to invest and to fuel the future of our Company.

2. Better execution. We will be able not only to seize more business opportunities but also
to increase our transformation rate. Why? Because we will be then able to execute our
work faster, and better.

mofpooodecpady

88esl gqpieon BigmieqesuSoudond 326 E:328:505: kg9 §600p58Ea0m opgaBgp:aogl [GEamdargaBep:sE vodage
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005c§:68008gmd0gP03 p38E:60008g0dag05§aopS ofo8anbeacntgist saofeoqas( st q§eoepS [§8dloopd

o1 ophoodBpl§luaBRiqpbg: - ofiddapio} esbonoy Biqibfaliaogh cpbebiqpiogt selgobmagiiafeoas §3
326000052209(46608 Edoopd1 0g860309gaB0pd :25000503€ 38eomEigSeoqs qpbgudy) qE:&dg 046320305
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[§6:6[opE vEc§:380pEm0d[gEssE (S 90§[gEs0memeagpdmacagicomsgslatiadndq§eod Cepdgdeomelopé
[g60laopSi

Diversification

Our Company relies mostly on its ability to build, maintain and operate tangible assets in the
telecommunication sector. TMH believes that its future will rely more on intangible assets: tomorrow
value will be probably driven by our capacity to extract value from data. Hence, we are considering

two ways to diversify our current business portfolio:

1. Designing and offering more services to the people who are ultimately using the network:
the end-users. They will be more demanding when they will interact with companies, and
government agencies. It will drive the needs for better solutions and services for

eCommerce, eGovernance, ...

2. Myanmar next revolution is probably related to the energy sector, where data will play a
crucial role to optimize the balance between production and consumption, and to better
manage the integration of renewable resources of energy.

TMH will consider any relevant investment in those areas.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance structure

800+ shareholders

Board of

Directors

Nominating Committee

Remuneration Committee

Audit, Compliance and Corporate
Governance Committee

Managing Director

Shareholders

e

"

3Ea8Eamdloogbn Bopalen  AfodSomsagnlypist

Shareholding Structure

m BOD B Individuals B Companies

J

Management team

TMH has over 800 shareholders. Our 10 biggest
shareholders control 92% of the voting rights. 89% of
our voting rights are held by shareholders who do
have a long-term interest in our company: our BOD
members, and some companies which decided to
invest in TMH. Still, it is important for TMH to protect
the interests of all its shareholders, especially its
shareholders who are holding a small number of
shares. Should they trust our TMH’s ability to create
long-term value, they might be able to provide us
with more capital later.

TMH opgBog  sapqodomngl Bieq (900) eoyp§dloogS
29quSunagP:adidEadlon (00)Biaopd opgaBel  Se0idEgt
L% §8k 5326632030561 0% § Se0:3EQEGaaqPopd cpgaRss
eqqed 0ogpdigniod eeonlgodaged§eon Zequdungqpie
opgRoRt qB:&i{g0598  adgodoonieommgBeag] [g8dloogb

Blg€ TMH sa65(9 329q05000gEamadiel sa0qjBignind omogudeoig$adzaddloopdi saapiaofgé qudomaaspdie
3EaBEcoeom  F9qudumngEqpind  omngude§admadiloopdi  oBoaqpiopd  cpgBeEl  eqgPESoRsdigp:  08o3:g0d
2§200503€ 33600005320[gb§EClooRdH
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General meetings

Our 800+ shareholders are meeting during AGM and EGM to:

Elect the Directors of the Board. The BOD Members will then act on their behalf to protect
and develop the Company’s value and assets.

Validate the financial statements, the auditors’ report and the directors’ report.

Approve the strategic roadmap prepared by the BOD Members, the Directors’ remuneration,
and how to allocate TMH’s resources, especially: the amount to be kept to invest in
developing further TMH’s assets, the dividends to be paid by the Company toits shareholders.

RIseodBel  20quSomgé eo0d (900) eoyhpoRd $H00dES sreageay spopimacois  SronEIGagEaR
32000:3060:3¢ GI0ddFae/oPpEimepgpiodeogadeagiegadigodlogdlaopde

380503308 qpreggdfgl: - A§odomeagnlep:aopd cmeReionsisé oqCima8igpiod 3apq0SugEqp:
BoSenzomazuSeonegpadBe 0donodeoqs apbeamnEepdigbaopSe

egoqigpe 0606328688005 Aq0dom=a8gEsogp:ad ssoopdgeagieggts

3805073308 qpregEadoo0d  vumgjomelgpodaododl  dfodomgpiel  sofdoniglapisé  cgadel
326C:308:qpi03 F0300%:q0(I200:00[g 32qC:3o8:q2320:388[§p0B:00056068 qE:84g0586pd VeI cgRL
329q500gEqp:ad cumdepd 33[gode0) odsi3aonaS(g[g:

[gEoongEiobyprageqdgt:

Board’s responsibilities

Our BOD members have to comply with the requirements of the New Companies Law. The

responsibilities of our BOD members are board and cover the following areas:

Defining and monitoring the implementation of TMH’s strategy.

Validating and overseeing the implementation of TMH’s corporate policies.

Ensuring the compliance of TMH with all the relevant laws and regulation in Myanmar.
Making sure that TMH has a sufficient control environment in place to monitor and manage
its main risks effectively.

Reviewing the relevance of the Company’s mission and vision.

Securing the succession of the BOD members by identifying suitable candidates to assume
the roles and responsibilities within the Board.

TMH has decided to balance its Board with a mix of executive and non-executive members.

Rl§eo0503el d§0domeagnlep:anpd 32008[gScopdesEadeoniean [g§er§EeanyaBpuesand eudlggndgpisan: cBodsn
0pS[g620p51 og§eondadel dfodomeagnlyp:el omoSogrepiqpiaopd 0905380E[gbqepdlgbE: eanbilsagEdgp: cloé
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Board’s committees
The Board has established three committees:

1. The Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance (ACCG) Committee,
2. The Nominating Committee,
3. The Remuneration Committee.

9905353038 6075603 (p)es:30p5:000:3lo0RS -

1. ACCG codwod (Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance Committee)
2. mepbong&ionEogieagembod
3. =eec[jegeadecd

Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit, compliance and corporate governance Committee will assist our Board in discharging its
responsibility to safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain adequate accounting records and
develop and maintain effective systems of internal control, with the overall objective of ensuring

that the management creates and maintains an effective control environment in our Company.

The Committee will provide a channel of communication between the Board, the management and

the external auditors on matters relating to the audit.
The Committee shall meet periodically to perform the following functions:

1. review the audit plans of the external auditors and our internal auditors (if any), including
the results of the review and evaluation of our system of internal controls by our external
auditors and internal auditors (if any);

2. review the annual financial statements and the external auditors’ report on those financial
statements, and discuss any significant adjustments, major risk areas, changes in accounting
policies, compliance with applicable financial reporting standards, concerns and issues
arising from their audits including any matters which the auditors may wish to discuss in the
absence of management, where necessary, before submission to our Company for approval;

3. review the periodic financial statements comprising the profit and loss statements and the

25



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 REslgslolciiRElelVIE ¢

balance sheets and such other information required by law, before submission to our

Company for approval;
4. review and discuss with external and internal auditors (if any), any suspected fraud,
irregularity or infringement of any relevant laws, rules or regulations, which has or is likely
to have a material impact on our Company’s operating results or financial position and our
management’s response;
review the co-operation given by our management to our external auditors;
consider the appointment and re-appointment of the external auditors;
review and approve interested person transactions pursuant to the IPT Procedures;

review any potential conflicts of interests;

L 0 N O U

review the procedures by which employees of our Company may, in confidence, report to

the Chairman of the Committee possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or

other matters and ensure that there are arrangements in place for an independent
investigation and follow-up actions in relation thereto;

10. undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by our Board, and report to
our Board its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of our
Committee; and

11. generally undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law.

Pursuant to the abovementioned duties relating to the Company’s audit function, the Committee
has the authority to make decisions independently from the Board. In light of due review of the
abovementioned functions, the committee assumes the authority to assess the appropriateness
and properness of the Company’s financial and accounting records for approval by a General

Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

Apart from the duties listed above, the Committee shall commission and review the findings of
internal investigations into matters where there is any suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of
internal controls or infringement of any Myanmar law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to
have a material impact on our Company’s operating results and/or financial position. Each member
of the Committee shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in respect of matters in which he is

interested.

The meetings of the Committee are convened as and when deemed necessary by the Chairman of the
Committee. Resolutions of an Committee meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes by adopting
“One Member One Vote System”. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall vote a second or

casting vote.
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Nominating Committee
The Nominating Committee is responsible for:

re-nomination of our Directors having regard to a Director’s contribution and performance,

determining annually whether or not a Director is independent, and

deciding whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his

duties as a Director.
The Nominating Committee has the authority to make decisions independently from the Board on
how the Board’s performance is to be evaluated and proposes objective performance criteria,
subject to theapproval of the Board, which address how the Board has enhanced long-term
Shareholders’ value. The Board intends to implement a process to be carried out by the Nominating
Committee for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and for assessing the contribution
by each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board. Each member of the Nominating
Committee is required to abstain from voting on any resolutions and making any recommendations
and/or participating in any deliberationsof the Nominating Committee in respect of the assessment
of his performance or re-nomination as Director.

The Nominating Committee assumes the authority to make proposals relating to the nomination
and re-nomination of members of the Board of Directors for approval at a General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Resolutions of a Nominating Committee meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes by adopting
“One Member One Vote System”. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall vote a secondor
casting vote.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee assumes the authority to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the various members of the Board of Directors. Without the Remuneration
Committee’s recommendation, the Board is not empowered to vote on and/or approve the

remuneration of any member of the Board of Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending to our Board a framework of
remuneration for our Directors and Executive Officers, and determining specific remuneration
packages for each Director and Executive Officer. The recommendations of our Remuneration
Committee are submitted for endorsement by the entire Board. All aspects of remuneration,
including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits in
kind shall be reviewed by our Remuneration Committee. Each member of the Remuneration
Committee is required to abstain from voting on any resolutions and making recommendations
and/or participating in any deliberations of the Remuneration Committee in respect of his

remuneration package.

Resolutions of a Remuneration Committee meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes by
adopting “One Member One Vote System”. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall vote

a second or casting vote.
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BOD Report
The BOD Members for FY18-19
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TMH Telecom Public Co.Ltd.
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From left to right: U Kyaw Swar Lwin, U Thein Zaw, U Aung Than, U Sein Win, U Thiha Lwin, U David O Abel,
U Myint Lwin, DawKhin Hnin Lwin, Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe, Daw Ohnmar Lwin, Daw Thuzar

BOD’s composition

-

Bl Executive Directors

H Non-Executive H Men
Directors
Bl Women
Independent Directors
(S J Y
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Governance for Growth

36% of our BOD members are  36% of our BOD members are 3 directors attended trainings
women independent directors provided by the Myanmar
\_ Institute of Directors  /
U Myint Lwin

U Myint Lwin is Chairman of the Board and was appointed as a Director on 10 September 2007. As
Chairman of the Board, U Myint Lwin organizes and manages issues relating to the future direction

and strategy of the Company. He sets the timetable and agenda of board meetings.
U Myint Lwin is also on the board of the following companies:

e  Tah Moe Hnye Group Investment and Development Co., Ltd,
e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Wood Based Industry Co., Ltd,

e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Mining Co., Ltd,

e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Nay Pyi Taw Hotel Co., Ltd and

o Chan Thar Gems Co., Ltd.

U Myint Lwin is also the Chairman of Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Investment Group Limited and

Myanmar Hurricane Investment and Technology Limited.

U Myint Lwin was officially appointed as the “Promoter for Investment, Trade and Tourism” by the
Union of Myanmar from 1997 to 2003 to represent Myanmar and attract foreign investments from
China, Hong Kong, Thailand, Singapore and Korea. U Myint Lwin had been instrumental in inviting

China’s largest telecommunications companies such as ZTE and Huawei to invest in Myanmar.
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e  Tah Moe Hnye Group Investment and Development Co., Ltd
e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Wood Based Industry Co., Ltd

e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Mining Co., Ltd

e  Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Nay Pyi Taw Hotel Co., Ltd

o Chan Thar Gems Co., Ltd.

BgEag€aopb Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Investment Group Limited $¢ Myanmar Hurricane Investment
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Daw Khin Hnin Lwin

Daw Khin Hnin Lwin is a Director and was appointed on 10 September 2007. Daw Khin Hnin Lwin is
also adirector in Tah Moe Hnye Chan Thar Investment Co., Ltd and the Chairman of Social Midwifery

association, Tah Moe Hnye Region, Northen Shan State.
edo8s8in8
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U Kyaw Swar Lwin

U Kyaw Swar Lwin is a Director and was appointed on 3 September 2011. U Kyaw Swar Lwin holds
a Bachelor of Science in Business Management from Adam University at Denver, Colorado in 2009.
Heisalso currently the Deputy Managing Director of Tah Moe Hnye Group Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. (since 1 December 2008) and Managing Director of Myanmar Hurricane Investment &
Telecom Co., Ltd (since 13 November 2014).
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U Thiha Lwin

U Thiha Lwin is the Managing Director of the Board and was appointed as a Director on 10 September
2007. As Managing Director, U Thiha Lwin organizes and is in charge of the delegation of duties to
the Directors and supervises the Chief Executive Officer in his running of the day to day business
operations of the Company. U Thiha Lwin graduated from the English department of the Beijing
Second Language College in 2003 and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Management
from Yangon University of Distance Education in 2011. U Thiha Lwin has successfully completed the

Myanmar Directorship Certification Programme from Myanmar Institute of Directors in April 2019.
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U Thiha Lwin began his career with the Company and has been instrumental in the growth and

strategic direction of the Company.

U Thiha Lwin is also the managing director in Tea Art Co.,Ltd., deputy managing director in Tah Moe
Hnye Chan Thar Investment Co.,Ltd and a director in Myanmar Hurricane Investment and Technology
Co.,Ltd.

U Thiha Lwin is currently a member of three associations, which are The republic of the Union of
Myanmar Federation of Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Myanmar Institute of Directors and

Myanmar Young Entrepreneurs Association.

As announced by the Company on 23 April 2018, Messi Li will resign from his position as Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 30 April 2018. The Company is in the process of finding a
replacement and in the meantime, U Thiha Lwin is currently taking on the responsibilities of Chief

Executive Officer.
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Daw Ohmar Lwin

Daw Ohmar Lwin is a Director and was appointed on 11 August 2016.

Daw Ohmar Lwin holds a Bachelor of Law (LL.B) from the Yangon University of Distance Education

in 2010.
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Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe

Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe is a Director and was appointed on 11 August 2016. Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe holds a
Bachelor of Computer Technology Degree (B.C.Tech) from the University of Computer Studies,
Mandalay in 2008. Thereafter, she was awarded the Certificate for Completion of the Pre-Master
Course (Business Studies) from the Myanmar Imperial College in 2013 and went on to pursue a
Master of Business Administration from the University of Northampton in November 2014 which
she completed in 2016. In preparation for the Master of Business Administration course, she had
attended and obtained the Pearson BTEC Level 7 Diploma in Strategic Management and Leadership
and the Pearson BTEC Level 7 Extended Diploma in Strategic Management and Leadership at
Myanmar Imperial College in September 2014. After obtaining her Master of Business Administration,
Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe obtained a certificate on Corporate Finance Technical Foundations from the
Chartered Institute for Securities & Investments in 2017. In April 2018, Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe was
awarded a PhD degree from Trinity World University in India. Dr Nang Lai Yi Soe has successfully
completed the Myanmar Directorship Certification Programme from Myanmar Institute of Directors
in April 2019.

Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe is also currently a member of three associations, which are Myanmar Women
Entrepreneurs’ Association, Myanmar Institute of Directors Association and Myanmar Young

Entrepreneurs Association.

edo500$§:c0qp58:

68l05075£:03qp58:0005 A0S0 m:Z0oEadB{gdB  J0obesd 1 [03005cw 00 qrdoRE ©832653l0b edlobom
$8:c06p08:0005 University of Computer Studies, Mandalay ¢ Bachelor of Computer Technology
(B.C.Tech) 5380803 jooe-956038 g§3dlaopSicdesncdionuopd Myanmar Imperial College ¢ Pre-Master
Course (Business Studies) s38ep Certificate for Completion o3 joop-956038 quad(Ber joog-§o€ome jook-
950 32038 University of Northampton ¢ Master of Business Administration opomgbod s005c005 ooodeqpod
90p5:0:30l00p51 32683 MBA 008an§s 200305 [0500€ [gEe0Co0pd sees[gC ope0pd joog-0050o8omapE Strategic
Management and Leadership s3&ep Pearson BTEC Level 7 Diploma sascopbieomn€: Pearson BTEC
Level 7 Extended Diploma sazcopS:comé Myanmar Imperial College § qop3dloopSnt MBA 93808 e§[G:es005
eglodoms§:adepdB:o0pS Chartered Institute for Securities & Investments ¢ Corporate Finance Technical

Foundations e38ep certificate con5e0503 j00qesb 0z€ 3Gk Jooo9sd efroog Trinity World University ¢
PhD 53, 036§3(8H{562005n

68l0505£:03p58:0005  j0oesd sfcwcgé Myanmar Institute of Directors (MIOD)e oyé:oeamn Director
Certificate Programme (DCP)oBooobeqpod3(8s DCP certificate §3[sg6o05n
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005§ §E0RE  edloSomssicdapdBioocd Myanmar Women Entrepreneurs’ Associationi Myanmar
Institute of Directors ¢ Myanmar Young Entrepreneurs’ Association & 3:008:080083: [gdoopSu

Daw Thu Zar

Daw Thu Zar is a Director and was appointed on 11 August 2016. Daw Thu Zar holds a degree from
the Department of English Soochow University in Taiwan in 2001. DawThu Zar has over 10 years of
working experience in company management administration. Daw Thuzar has successfully
completed the Myanmar Directorship Certification Programme from Myanmar Institute of Directors
in April 2019.

Daw Thuzar is currently a member of Myanmar Institute of Directors Association.

edlopan

edlopaaopd op§6adel dfodSom 0088: [gB[Gs Joob{ogoc5-00 qudope 9§2065d3lopSIedl opanoopd Taiwan §&¢
Soochow University 1 Department of English ¢ 2265&e00 3380803 jo0o-9560 q§ooniGi opgad 85083
309)066es¢ 060qdiq) 00-$demyP spc0z32(03| §looRdr

edloamaopd joopesd efoogé Myanmar Institute of Directors (MIOD)e ogé:ocom Director Certificate

Programme (DCP)o3 oooSeepad3[g: DCP certificate §3[: Myanmar Institude of Directors Association
& 22208:080088sc0pd: (B3R5

U David Oliver Abel

U David Oliver Abel is a Non-Executive Director and was appointed on 25 June 2017. U David Oliver
Abel graduated from the Royal Military Academy with a PhD in development economics. He had
served in various positions in the Myanmar government as a retired Brigadier General in the
Myanmar Army and a former cabinet Minister with posts ranging from Minister of Trade, Finance &
Revenue, Economic Planning and as Development Minister in the Chairman’s Office, State Peace
and Development Council.

Please also see below table which sets out U David Oliver Abel’s various notable appointments in
the course of his career in Myanmar.

No. Appointment

1. | Advisor to the Minister of Finance (1962 — 1964)

Chief Instructor Law and Administration Training School (1965 — 1970)
Executive Officer of the 88 Light Infantry Division (1970 -1976)

Assistant Quartermaster General (1976 — 1984)

S| 2| Y@

Director General (Planning and Statistics of the Ministry of Livestock and Fisheries)

U David Oliver Abel is also the founder of the Union of Myanmar Economic Holding, Advisory
Counselor to the Wold Vision International (Myanmar) and Chairman of the ASK Consultant Group.

U David Oliver Able resigned on 22 Feb 2019.
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poessé 3p0g|6eae aoonsieoype: soap[Bs (opks-0pq)
326005-00 6[g[g$0066E: 008g (0pq0-0pqE)
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U David Oliver Abel 20p5Union of Myanmar Economic Holding o3 00o€ oopbeconédoopd 30(gét Wold
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B:63:063308006320000c500p5 j0oEPsd 1 GeeEd A () )qodes03E Bepiagodaudeom dfedomaalyde 500G
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U Aung Than

U Aung Than is a Non-Executive Director and was appointed on 3 September 2016. U Aung Than
holds a Bachelor of Commerce B.Com (AA) from the Yangon Institute of Economics in 1970 and a
Diploma in Economic Planning (D.E.P) from the Yangon Institute of Economics in 1980. He served as
the Assistant Budget Officer in the Budget Department of the Ministry of Planning and Finance from
1971 to 1982. He was registered as a Higher Grade Pleader in 1982 and thereafter admitted as an
Advocate of the Supreme Court of Myanmar in 1984. U Aung Than is now also serving as a business

consultant.
Biean8ood:

Dieamnloofsoopd  0g§6alel  opgaBopd  mgeemnloupodeom  (Non-Executive)  di§odSoonoodBigdds:
[J0o6-0050080m-p qod] 10§32683l0000 BieamnEansiondd Yangon Institute of Economics ¢ Bachelor of
Commerce B.Com (AA) 5380803 opqu-958038 copdieomEs Diploma in Economic Planning (D.E.P)
80086003 0pe0-95603E cVpSiomE:s g§oodloopdi GE:o0pS BoaBS:$E oocmreeE 0§[3gPs! qadswsielgegoatigrsont
005600005 B:8:306p] 22[96 0pqO-9500 oEe 95 3208 000§ C06:6802EFABIGE20S ope J-95803E Fa000500S:
6q.0530[90 ©0500CHGs1  opeG-95d0RC  [GSw8EE  ooepigodeondqI0]  ooepigodeonieq es  [gBadloogdi
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B:e308 20820005 009324l Begnieaprpiess 320380ES00B:m[gd WEMRE GeooEQadgEd §dloopdi

U Thein Zaw

U Thein Zaw is a Non-Executive Director and was appointed on 3 September 2016. U Thein Zaw
holds a Bachelor of Economics (Statistics) from the Yangon Institute of Economicsin 1979. Thereafter,
he obtained a Diploma in Automatic Computing from the Yangon University in 1985 and a Diploma
in Computer Data Systems from the U.S Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census,

International Statistical Programs Center in 1988.

U Thein Zaw was the Deputy Planning Officer in the Ministry of Planning and Finance from 1981 to
1992 and thereafter was a staff officer with the Internal Revenue Department from 1992 to 2016.

Br88:aad

B:038:0ab08 086036l B 3dmgeant :[gd wesmnlgndeamn (Non-Executive) ai§od5omoodBsgdd::
[ J0o6958-0050080m00-p §05] o0 9§32633l0p5n B:a88:6@d20p5 Yangon Institute of Economics ¢ Bachelor of
Economics (Statistics) 5380803 opqe-9560 q§ddloopdi valiesnod gE:o0pd Yangon University ¢ a Diploma
in Automatic Computing o3 opeg-95803€ copbeomé: U.S Department of Commerce, Bureau of the

Census, International Statistical Programs Center ¢ Diploma in Computer Data Systems o3 ogee-
950038 cvpbieomE: g§3claoSu

B:038:0ab00pd 0peo-9580 ope 956 92038: 80B&:sC ooamegs of[Bigrsd 30300 BdBSimaepfzalgd om0
008:680083[Gre50051 [gobogtiangiqp: B:8:058 ope J-956¢ J0ob-956 3003 B:Biaepfma[yd es0rEg0d3loodr

U Sein Win

U Sein Win is a Non-Executive Director and was appointed on 3 August 2018. U Sein Win holds a
Bachelor of Commerce, Accounting and Auditing from the Yangon Institute of Economics in 1970.

Thereafter, he obtained register accountant as Certified Public Accountin 1972. He is the EC member

of Myanmar Accountancy Council and Monitoring Committee.

U Sein Win is the founder and CEO of Top Accounting Services and Myanmar Prestige Legal and

Financial Consulting Ltd.

U Sein Win was the budget officer of the Budget Department in the Ministry of Finance and Revenue
from 1970 to 1976, thereafter was the Deputy Chief Account Officer in No.2, Mining Enterprises,
Ministry of Mining from 1976 to 1989.

DiBSot:

B:880820005 Befgrrcg0brdeomdfd0adBgdR: J0oopsd (030050 o qrdesoRE 9§30632005r  B:BSnE:aopd
Yangon Institute of Economics ¢ Bachelor of Commerce 53,03 opqo-956038q§3dloopSi opq josdoge
005005[gpSopoqEiaBE (CPA) [g8cndoopdi 8:8§0E:0005 opqo ¢ opqbesd macdonamaesEangSosodicos:
qodiesielgegoqlignsopt ondbqobmaepdesigd 00§006:ee00E3Giesn0d 1| opqesde opeResd 220830005 ()
20gn|0p8:cp0cEs 20grI0RE: 0§[0Bigr503E 30B000qEBE epdg|O32[gd 0m00Ec0E:Ee0EF205N
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B:8808:0005 Top Accounting Service $¢ Myanmar Prestige Legal and Financial Ltd & oopSeoonan[sd(Ge
005§3§803E 3ageeoEanepdelgd 0m0§uree0Egadng5§ooRdi
B:880820005 [g§08ECmaCieomEBeil 2280E0dB: [gEa05n

Management Team

Mr. Xiao Ming Yang

Mr. Xiao Ming Yang is the General Manager of TMH and he joined TMH in 2018. As General Manager,
he is in charge of Business and Market development of the company. He holds a Master Degree of

Computer Science of Huzhang University of Science and Technology in 1986.

His past working experience is as below:

1986-1992 HuBei Institute of Machine and Electric Engineer

1992-1998 Legend Group LAS Company General Manager
1998-2002 3Com Network Company Huzhang Area General Manager
2002-2007 Shen Zhen Chipstech Company Deputy Genral Manger
2007-2017 Tun Wai Thar Company Limited General Manger
2018Apr- up to now | TMH Telecom Public Company Limited General Manager
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Mr. Xiao Ming Yang

Mr. Xiao Ming yang 2025 j0o09$d effcoe 00086 saeagecgusesqpselgd omo§opeaontgodagod§Ss eqrogadst
006c§:988ep §[8peeadlep 0200$[gbo00n Mr. Xiao Ming Yang 20p5 opelesdogé Huzhang University of
Science and Technology ¢ 0039303 g§320251

Mr. Xiao Ming Yang &l cpbesizncogesjodjyn 632005665[gdlzao3Elgddloogds

opel ¢ ope ) 3208 HuBei Institute of Machine and Electric 28qt8um

ORE § OpEe=20S Legend Group LAS Company :eogeay v§esqp

opE® ¢ J0O_ 3208 3Com Network Company Huzhang Area :eogeay v§esqp

JOOJ ¢ Jooq 3208 Shen Zhen Chipstech Company CV05e0m05me09e03 viesqp
JO0Q ¢ J0oQqeacd Tun Wai Thar Company Limited meogeay v§esqp

Jooo @@(\3? Q);I)g,;a% TMH Telecom Public Compa ny Limited 3609600 Q$G§QP

Daw Nay Chi Lynn

Daw Nay Chi Lynn is the Chief Financial Officer of TMH and she joined TMH in May, 2016. She holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration from Yangon University of Economic in 2004 and holding a
diploma of Business Management from ABE, UK. She is CIMA-Strategic level candidate and she is

currently pursing Master Degree of Banking and Finance from Yangon University of Economics.

Daw Nay Chi Lynn has over 10 years of experiences in accounting and budgetary control, financial
and management reporting, performance management, financial analysis, investment analysis and

internal control.

She worked as Senior Accountant in Family Entertainent Group Co., Ltd from 2006 to 2011. Then
she worked as Chief Accountant Assistant in Myanmar Padauk Co. Ltd from 2011 to 2014 and as
finance Manager in Great wall International Co., Ltd from 2014 to 2016. And since May, 2016, She
joined TMH Telecom Public Company Ltd as the Chief Finance and responsible until September,
2018.

edl egfgpSeot:

edlesfgpSooianpd opgaBel onameemaepdqd [g6[: Joobesd | cecoe ool Chief FINANCE s3(gb omo§op
eenCgodfG:  Jooosd SoComaoe 00l ©qE:dEqIbm:[gd 00oEomn§0siee0ntFa0pd  edles[godoodsanpd
JoogesdogE Bachelor of Business Administration o3 g$0p$8:gnieepongradabe 9§38 Diploma in Business
Management (ABE,UK) o3copS: q§[Gfgdoopdi opeoopd CIMA-Strategic level i candidate ood3:{go[Gs
c005§3§§03¢ qSmsdignieqpoogradcde Master of Banking and Finance o3 aoodeepodenoamagod§oopdi
edles[godoudsanpd egeqielogices $& coameesadtep $05005( Accounting and Budgetary Control, financial
and management reporting, performance Management, financial analysis, investment analysis and
internal control) og€ cpSesencogan(od 00sdsE 320005 oplgdaopde

edlesfgpSoog:anpd Family Entertainment Group Co.,Ltd og€ Senior Accountant sagd joobesd ¢ jooo 956
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:aBcopbieoné: 1 Myanmar Padauk Co.,Ltd o3¢ Chief Accountant Assistantss[gd j0oo9sd ¢ j0oGosd
mBoopbieoné: 1 Great wall International Co.,Ltd o3¢ Finance Manager s3gd joogesd ¢ joobosd
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Activities

The BOD met 12 times during the last financial year. During the last financial year, the BOD dealt

with the following topics:

e the review and approval of a new Company’s Constitution to comply with the New
Companies Law,

o the recruitment of a new CFO,

e the development of new products, services and solutions to reinforce TMH’s portfolio,

e  the review of the implementation of the strategy,

e  the oversight of the financial performance, and corporate reporting.

The following table summarized the main topics discussed by our Board.

3805073308 qp:o0pd [Gideomonamsdon (o)) (03008 co3e03[0300pS1 [Ge300pdonmsdeangls dfnSomaagn
qP2o0pS 6320053 03gqdypszazalggC:8EZ0p5!

°  [5508E¢ opgaBpouesnndst odoSpdeogs crgaBepdiqbiaacobamiodesomaonpdlgfet:

*  CFO 22060832096

*  TMH opgaBel 09§0gobeaodgpsi 0§ea008gm00dgpaaiodyéandeand(gt:

s 0oMq)uIPEN6oER0de5e0nEQ0d8E[gE el 0dasodgts

*  ogeoyadCepgbieaniest 6053§05eBpma8aCagtqpiaa: [p30nE8oS[gE:
68305665(g0l @u:RE 0705830 GegieERIGaNEmIE[PErepePiEIydqId Gedlgooazaopd

Date Business Finances Compliance  Strategy
Review & reporting

06/04/2018
06/05/2018
27/06/2018
07/07/2018
04/08/2018

08/09/2018
06/10/2018
04/11/2018
07/12/2018
03/01/2019
04/02/2019
01/03/2019

Our BOD members were also trained at the Myanmar Institute of Directors to ensure that they have
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the skills and knowledge to run TMH in compliance with the Myanmar Law and with the best

practices related to Corporate Governance. They are also supporting the Yangon Stock Exchange

and the Securities Exchanges Commission to promote Myanmar Capital Markets.

gSeondodel d§odomeagnlypiean: opgadem: [§§e8EEameadypipuesst 03058e0gsst 6005380580309 095
005200560009260920060MEYPE 0305p3gPR66eNEEERS Bendeamneaqpdaagigpist vuvpapogp: [gpddcoas
:0305 Myanmar Institute of Directors ¢ 3geoonoo€on§iqpiod oo0deepod3claopdn [g§ersaqtaneqrogad
qpazgEonteu:las 950rs0602336¢5:5E egeqaondea0dnEesi0Bmdeqgembogadnond cpnBecmnddeungod
§oopdu

s 0/ YANGON

’ STOCK EXCHANGE

“As a listed company, we are committed to embrace
good governance standards and to improve
continuously the quality of our corporate reporting.

We are pleased to support the stakeholders involved
in the development of the Myanmar Capital Market,
and we will continue to do so. On the long run, it will
benefit not only TMH but all the companies which
are looking to fund the expansion of their business.”
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BOD attendance

12 BOD meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19. Below is the attendance of each

director, and more information about the contribution as Board members. All our BOD members do

not hold any other directorships in listed or public Myanmar companies.

Jooo- Joop  o0amsd3038:  dA§odomsagolypimaopiimco: (o)) [BEBERE  oyiod00p5n  d§nSonzaadiaBial

0056ePNemetisE d0d0m=30E[ed edlEiea0nqod[atisEuodonndeom 2000E:3r9(05300 GRS 6330d0RE
SPOOQDIECESE 13 R Q $C S QP 3

e6d[goozaopdi 038600508 cgaBel dl§050m8a308320:0d:0005 Safgpiepdaopd enqEio€amieommgaBypisé sagp:dE
[g§er0pgaBqpioge S§0Somaalgd clogfgEeddln

Share- Meetings’ First Last
holders attendance appointment re-election
U Myint Lwin Yes Executive - Chairman 100% 10/09/2007 05/08/2018
DawKhin Hnin Lwin | Yes Non-executive Director 100% 10/09/2007 05/08/2018
U Kyaw Swar Lwin | Yes Non-executive Director 100% 03/09/2011 05/08/2018
U Thiha Lwin Yes Executive Managing Director | 100% 10/09/2007 25/06/2017
DawOhmar Lwin Yes Non-executive Director 75% 11/08/2016 25/06/2017
Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe | Yes Executive Director 100% 11/08/2016 25/06/2017
Daw Thu Zar Executive Director 83% 11/08/2016 25/06/2017
U David Abel* Non-executive Director 25% 25/06/2017
U Aung Than Independent Director 100% 25/06/2017
U Thein Zaw Yes Independent Director 100% 25/06/2017
U Sein Win** Yes Independent Director 67% 06/08/2018
* U David Abel resigned on 22 February 2019.
** U Sein Win was appointed on 6 August 2018.
', R |
YANGON <l

’ STOCK EXCHANGE

MNovotel Yangon Max |
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Committees
Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance Committee

During the last financial year, the ACCG Committee met 3 times. Besides its traditional duties, the
ACCG Committee had to manage a fraud case (see page 51).

For the next year, the Committee plans to reinforce the control environment, especially the
procedures related to risk management, and the corporate policies of TMH.

The attendance of this Committee is summarized in the table below.

0$3600000ams600 ACCG 602560335308 qp:00p5 (p)[036 60390320051 desesongodesoy omoSqpeag c86cupde
0289030 850433000051 (@295 go ARfo3d)

000056920305 607500B2005 r00:0[gE 9d:geSCalgEa: 86083[gC: c0n53§odedlcoBypist c00He8Eeam cpdads
c0555:qps 3adlm08 control environment o3 [§€ooEqs Bodaonzaopdi

60056036l 320p0:2260:000566p0d4oq 3 eam0ddleuianl oydiq|dewdigaonicloopS

Name Role Meetings’ attendance
U Thein Zaw Chairman 100%
U Aung Than Member 100%
U Thiha Lwin Member 100%
Daw Lae Lae Khaing Secretary 100%

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met 2 times during the last financial year. U Sein Win was appointed
chairperson on the 18" August 2018.

The attendance of this Committee is summarized in the table below.

3206[036ge056032005 (38§36000N$632038: ( ))03660390320051 00095 0300500 (00)qode50RE B:BSot:em:
PG32[g0 ©§326300001

60nSe03el 320p5:2260:000566p056¢oqE:d 630dClmurE SoydgBesdlgoosdloogdi

Name Role Meetings’ attendance
U Sein Win Chairman 50%*
U Thein Zaw Member 100%
Dr. Nang Lai Yi Soe Member 100%

* U Sein Win joined the Committee on 18" August 2018.

Remuneration of the BOD

Board of Directors

FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019 | FY2019-2020 Estimated
Aggregate
remuneration and Ks. 67,200,000 Ks. 67,200,000 Ks. 67,200,000
benefits in kind
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Executive Officers

FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019 | FY2019-2020 Estimated
Aggregate
remuneration and Ks. 50,100,000 Ks. 48,520,000 Ks. 48,520,000
benefits in kind

2053086l comoel
9p05eag08 dodoooqp:
JooqJooo ooepngh | Jooo- joogongposd | J0og-JoJo 0286 (okef:)
Ae:coms
eee sosigh g 6q, 00,000 036 6q,Joo,000 oq6 6q, 00,000 036
ofdonglyp:

s:qeecn& :ﬂ%cﬁcmqp:
Jooq-Jooe oogmgb | jooe- Joogoogmogd | Joog- Jo Jo 0qposd (o§e§:)

99cdlC:comsé

. 60,000,000 o6 6,8 0,000 oq6 69,8 0,000 o6
ofdonglyp:

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee met 1 time during the last financial year. The Committee had to manage
the succession of the CEO and CFO who left TMH last year.

The attendance of this Committee is summarized in the table below.

20p500qE:008098:gEs600560B005  or$80dsSnaB[036  copedeagiegidloogdbi GorbeoBoopd [Bidaopdsbon
§050905092392005 CEO $& CFO 56p220305 0pOesigp: 0000509985C 200000820095 03§ Csag:65:53100001
eondedBel 320p5:3260:000566p0d¢ogE:03 eamSilaoriand oy Bigbessgaonidloogbi

Name Role Meetings’ attendance
U Aung Than Chairman 100%
U Kyaw Swar Lwin Member 100%
Daw Ohnmar Lwin Member 100%
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General meetings
Annual General Meeting

Our last AGM was held on 5" August 2018. 7 resolutions were approved by our shareholders, and

are summarized in the table below.

1 To approve the Company’s FY 2017-2018 Financial Statement Passed

2 To approve the Company’s FY 2017-2018 Director’s report Passed

3 To approve the Company’s proposed dividend for FY 2017-2018 Passed
Passed

4 To re-elect Directors to the Company’s Board of Directors: Passed
Re-elected Directors _ U Myint Lwin, DawKhin Hnin Lwin, U Kyaw
Swar Lwin

5 To appoint the new Independent Director and appoint as new Passed
Chairman of Nomination Committee _ U Sein Win

6 | To appoint the Company’s Vice Chairman _ U David Oliver Abel Passed

7 To appoint the Company’s new auditor _ U Tin Latt and Associates Passed

TMH paid a dividend of MMK 200 per share, as approved by the AGM, on 10t August 2018.

Jooo1 [2300500 §) §05e503E crgaBsdocdrodenopbiaacoinioyiod[fiesnadd adyodqod q qoad saequdomglypion
o0pd[gidoopSe

i HESqp oeo8

1 | Jooq-oe 330305 oopogfiondamizongigeh a2005go0pd
2 | J0oqroe 920905 doSommBabseramizongiiaf 3202p8[g100p8
3 |Jooqrosmacgoanbagbamicommeldoeogatzaanpiiyag 200p5g00p5
g | 25820e03 Sdop: [GroopdogeaeSap 320g5fg0op5

B8l edlo85E:09E5C BraoqPgraygla’ [gScopbegeguddeopdi

0godcudeomdlfndomarndegegudqist B:BSol:am: Nomination Committee & | 320005(g00p5

5

peRG=2[ad o§=2698
6 U David Oliver Abelsa:opgadel 3-00ngaa(gd 9520668 200p5[gj00p5
7 U Tin Latt and AssociatessaniongadonqC:063a(gd 053206 3200p5[gj00p5
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:[godeog [gfedeg oo 03Ba00500560:365300R5!
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Special General Meeting

On March 31%, a Special General Meeting was organized to approve TMH’s new Constitution.

Resolutions

Special Resolution (1):
1 Passed

Proposed adoption of the new constitution of the company

©dbcw po qcﬁegﬁogcg TMH @gnﬁe‘ﬁ {;oé:ooéeaoocﬁc’esaoa&s;ox saor)é@q$3903(ﬁ sao?zsaeogeogsaoézeoz oo
$o0d1

on | addgodqod (o) 1 Jopbionpdeannoddsacndsmzaonpdlgfet:s 3200p5[gj00p5

1 TMH
TMH Telecom Public Company Limited
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

ovotel Yangon Max 31" March 2019
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Risk Management

Our Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance (ACCG) Committee is ultimately responsible for
overseeing how TMH is complying with all the relevant Myanmar Laws and Regulations, and
managing the key risks which might impact the sustainability of its operations. To ensure that TMH’s
BOD always has the right information when making a decision, its ACCG Committee can task the
Internal Audit team to investigate across the company. Internal auditors will then report back
directly to the ACCG Committee Members. TMH’s control environment is summarized in the
chart 5.

aHsg8CalgeamBoad3[at:

R$e02503 ACCG conduodel 28momosgpied TMH opgaBoopd 20056886 [gSerpuesypst opSiqibgpisCanpd
B05$0[gE:ed [03{0366$5E cpdedigpeel eqgpSonpSodde[Fesacd condespodeonpd 3a8madg§Calgqp:n? 8oes3aS
[§8320051 TMH opgeeil Sl§050m3a808qp:eae 59 adegodgodqpeqieodepogd adeanndean 0008: 2agiod3ac005gp:
9§88e0e$ ACCG corbocBoopd mpgaBopl: ©1qE:0635303 mrgBam: e:0d:eapemngs 00086030 0oaxdlooRdr
pgBopEimngliobypioopd ACCG corbodBmngolyqpsad dBod§ed 228qEo0oE[gaopdn TMH opgaBel  0B8:qi0q
Od3@00R05 § 0g€ Soeg)d GwdlgoonaoSi

TMH has three main categories of risks to manage: legal, financial and business-related.

TMH opgaBopl 8095395 poesadlepr egelogiadlepst B:igneapadCepundjendmamndyl ed::8elgaadjizoon: (p)
fesfoopSy

1. The Myanmar legal system is still evolving, and the interpretation and application of

Myanmar laws and regulations involve uncertainty, which can impact our ability to

operate our operations and to deliver the results we expected. For example, for our BTS

and fiber operations, the laws related to land management are critical, and some of our

customers’ projects were postponed recently because of the complexity of the law.

[g508E¢p0es0005  mac[pEimacdyp: feseoncomeoPp [gSerpoeagpisé  opbiqbigpiea:  228¢00S
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BTS $& 3050mc0bc§igqpiopl  elgondde§last ooode8Eeampouesgpioogd 328cn  maeqeclaopd
GEsp0e30005 qEcuigodgtelopt og§eon5o? Clients gpell Bdo35:eag) 3a0:eg, 838300051

2. Asacompany operating in the ICT sector, and as our Company is investing in developing
its future asset, access to capital is for us essential. The Myanmar Financial Sector is about
to be modernized, according to the Myanmar Sustainable Development Plan. However,
the pace of reforms in the banking sector is still unclear. Therefore, the lack of accessibility
to a modern banking system may impact our capacity to deliver and implement our

strategic roadmap.
ICT onqpogl caonlgodesB GE:onmme0305 3250005 32C:3a8:qpszand Bpodoncdeoqs &:8{yos

48



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019  WeelgslelClINClelIGElleS
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3. The sustainability of our operations relies on our ability to attract, develop and retain the
right talents, and on our capacity to establish partnerships with the most relevant
companies: they shape the quality of our products and solutions, and therefore contribute
to our customers’ satisfaction. The profitability of our operations is directly proportionate
to our capability to keep our promises and meet our customers’ requirements. Therefore,
it is vital for us to assess them carefully before accepting a project to ensure our ability to
secure our profit margin. In some cases, when the security of our operations and the

safety of our employees and contractors are not guaranteed, we prefer not to proceed.
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g§eodad  cobeSigpiel  :[godm0g8:§SEEi0000  og§eotodcionaBmad:  cvbeemEeudE[gta
R§e0503 orgaBe ooSurongpeel  83a0g05gPi0’  [gpdeopSicuidEgEiadsEadad§odsadiayesdloogS
Belopé og§eordade profit margin 3:0:9§§Ec0qs BocBE:00d9320: 005068 GEsmagEdgpisan: 2003§gn(sE
2D[goS0d6e0q e MEBI0d 36epdldlopdi 0p§e00503 crdeSigpiel AYlgess ogSeonSodonea®
0800bsqpzel GoninCiga: 32009660:8EGIM 2og],039q04p03 00dcu05nrEesoE[gEedd

Chart 5 - TMH control environment
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Every month, the Internal audit team will share its report and findings with the ACCG
Committee. During FY18/19, the main topics discussed were related to TMH’s compliance
with the New Companies Law requirements, the succession of its CFO and the management
of a fraud identified earlier during the year (see page 49 ). The internal audit team will
assess, review, and challenge all the data shared with the Board, especially those related

to TMH’s performance.

c00d peRoptiengCiodmngood 208qCsmsE copfgdgpias ACCG cordedBad ool[googdi jooe- joog
0563209E:32800689:65:6000681C:05qPied TMH 0rgBd3a6s[gE 320086F000:000:60000pgBP0G33qY
320905¢P:dc80d50[gCs  ooameeEmaepgI0  pops3eoged 0500600  0§3a0[glisC  $68:3C:00qpeg
6650005836000 c88copdemangad 869§3(gE:03 [gbilaopdi (eogeds0 G o3 [03pBdlN) opgaBopts oo E:ed
32305 ogo[g€ TMH  opgdel  gdieaonlapdsC  0052005600000008:3a9105320005¢p:  2adl3a08
38050235308 ¢PieE 00E[Ga0n:60072000E:35gi053200058NG03:A(Yod0dGs0scEES:e0 [§d20RdH

The Internal Audit team will always check how TMH’s departments are complying with the
Laws which are relevant to their activities. The HR department will have to consider, for
example, the Labour Laws while the Finances Department will need to follow the rules and

regulations issued by the IRD.

Then, the internal auditors will also monitor how they comply with TMH’s internal rules
and policies. For example, the HR department issues an Employee Handbook, the

Operations department has various SOPs, etc.

g BoxE:qEiod333265(9E TMH opgaBel grsqp:oopd GE:adel cpbesmntaodqpist 2005e3Eeampoues
qp2e0: 3055098edod 32[Godeeniepdlgdoopdi powsagé HR §rs0005 sacpboowspoesgpia: copdogls
odioqepdlgdB:  egoatigrso0pd  [gobogtiaagiapidiBigrse  coodg§aoieomeopSiqpiopSimnbigpisan:
8055098 32260001

0365005 opgaBoptiongEodgp:aopd TMH 6 opdiqibigpisCadlagpaa: c30ds0ediedodaods contloypdepd
[g020p51 powdsigE HR §rg2005 0§00b:005:qdic00dgqpo? coodlgSoondgts Operations grsogé SOP
Fqeqfjreo:§[gE:0000503 [gBaopSi

Outlook for the coming year

The ACCG Committee tasked the Internal Audit team to reinforce TMH’s control
environment by (i) strengthening TMH’s corporate policies and (ii) aligning its Risk
Management System with the best practices.

ACCG 60256032005 TMH opgaBel 800300363208 [§E00EQS 63200513105 qpsgE opgaBoptiongtiod
32330 (050360005

(0) §Eweanear’53§odedsgp: [gded colgts

() opgael 90258 CalgeanBiadde osbodeomEgSeommaenysacogpist §$p3[gt:
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Business ethics
Principles

TMH strives to be a responsible company and to embrace the highest standards regarding
transparency and integrity. We expect our BOD members, managers, and employees to comply
with the principles described in our Employee Handbook, and we urge our stakeholders to share
their concerns should anyone of our Company misbehave. People who are reporting in good faith
will always be supported and protected by TMH from any form of retaliation.

At TMH, we have a zero-tolerance approach regarding corruption and discrimination. All our rules
and internal guidelines are compiled in our Employee Handbook. Every year, this document is
updated by our HR department, to take into consideration the recommendations of our stakeholders,
the results of the internal audits, and to enhance our current practices.

TMH 0pgcB2005 0200§090860000paRod9gda$5¢ gEaullgEomar oahadogdeodst 0o5a005q) [gEenteomndaoode
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o§cobsgpiaans 05006:0p5:qP:005803E  GudlgaonieomopdiqiPigpiaecdl: c3ndsnes egproddloopdi saofoon5e3E
pqP3a65(gE  0p§eo0503  opgBel  eosuligneecntgad  §Calgqpist  vodoncSEaNEusgypie:  geocugS
2[03[g10305038:300051 TMH 0rgcB0005 sa(gjooeom|gé oné[groneamangpssaiaddodeospd vpdaopdrondodlgSedi:od
eadm0m3309056080g0:0p5 [§8looRd!
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pgBel  opdiqdigpisC  0pgBopEirdisqodgPIEIindi000d  0§006:0R0igPIndPSE  0305p8¢§ ool 0§c0s:
0005803 pfeoddopgaBel  saopooodadargpaisalodlggEdgps  opgaBoptiongCiodypiel  qroSgpiad
copdogtiosongoonem opgadeiicondeaccpsacogpia? [¢Eont8Eeqimaagnd qpdqudfds HR grsonsdodsbode: [glgé
so8eqgagdloogdi

Safeguarding our reputation

When a case is reported, our HR department will start the investigation. If the case is serious, it will
be handled by the Internal Audit team to ensure confidentiality of the inspection and to protect as
well the whistleblower. Internal auditors will then inform the BOD of their findings, and recommend
a various range of actions to manage the issue swiftly.

Last year, a case of fraud was identified. TMH realized that one of its employees was not fulfilling its
duties, and was instead, abusing its authority within the company to channel the money the
Company owed to the Social Security Fund to its bank account. As soon as this case was confirmed,
the Internal Audit informed the Audit, Compliance and Corporate Governance Committee. TMH
dealt with the relevant authorities to close this issue and decided to reinforce its internal control.

038 000b9s00E[J[glsdqogé  og§eododel HR grs0pd dodiodesoigodoontapdeemndoogdi  oda3gqdaopd
20:3266E0303g[gb0ln  0qEiodmgondodiodesoigam:  f),podcon§CassE  coodewdelgplogpsagein:  omogud
60:88qs oBEapude[gqEsooodi dBe5005 opgaBoptiongCiobgpiaopd GE:odel eopdgEdgpisy: 9533 BonE( G
0389032 qIE[gsge 80053888 qpbeaontapdeadjdfjisaasioicuoobi
08360005600 AB6LP590H903 GogdFoESH 0§08:00863:a0p5 GEsslomosypsza: pdeeoaepdzaem: mgBogts
0053EgEa3m00d:q 8 opgde Social Security Fund 330305 cusg$§ieonaegod 03uSdEonahengtsad agelgptieselopts
2003[gB0pd1  ofo3gqdsmmeanpdlg ewdcndd3BropgaBogtiongtiodoopd ACCG (Audit, Compliance and
Corporate Governance Committee)eobecB3320500008:3320001 GE:03gqbam: 2005a38ep omosopypiss oBE
09056[g5E:3G:onpgBop8:adEiq00p003g33: [§E0nErs 6e0rEqSeddgod3005!
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Focus on transparency

Pwint Thit Sa is a project undertaken by the Myanmar Centre for Responsible Business and

Yever. Itis the only ranking in Myanmar assessing the transparency of Myanmar companies.
In the last edition, TMH’s reached the 15 rank compared to 18™ in 2018. Among listed
companies, TMH’s achieved the 3" rank out of 5.

In 2018, TMH contributed to a joint initiative led by the SECM, DICA, YSX and the support
of IFC which objective was to assess the current practices of Myanmar companies regarding
corporate governance against the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS). During
the launching ceremony of the report published by the SECM, YSX, DICA, and IFC, Dr Nang
Lai Yi Soe took part on a panel discussion to share TMH’s feedback (see photo below).

This annual report was explicitly developed to disclose more and better information to our
shareholders and stakeholders, and to comply better with the ACGS criteria.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
BTS

()

Highlights

54

The revenues from our BTS operations reached MMK 6.06 billion for FY18-19 (vs MMK 6.5

billion last year). They account for 81% of TMH’s revenues. The contraction is mostly due to

a more challenging business environment, and the cancellation of various projects by our

clients.

Our BTS operations include both the construction work and 24/7 service maintenance to

meet the requirements of our customers’ needs:

o For the construction work, we provide site acquisition, civil work, technical installation,
and power installation.

o Forthe maintenance services, we provide different solutions like preventive & corrective
maintenance, EPC & refuel management service, etc.

We serve two leading mobile carriers in Myanmar, MPT, the historical player and the

biggest service provider in Myanmar and MyTel who is developing its network quickly in

Myanmar.

Last year, we delivered BTS maintenance services to MPT for their towers in various regions

and to China Unicom for their landing station in Ngwe Saung.

We have a national footprint, and we can operate wherever it is safe for our employees and

contractors.

We built 60 new towers, and we maintain totally 800 towers all across the country.

Our relationships with our clients are strong: we received 4 awards, and the satisfaction

rate of our customers was at least 99%.

Since FY16-17, more than 1.3 million Myanmar people benefited from the access to mobile

network thanks to the towers we installed.

BTS cpSesgpie ofegaopbonamsd jooe-op 320305 [gSenegayfbobo a0§:§3ao0pSi (ooamsd jooq-oe
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eaqpspO:oq[glien BsgareqrrdeSiqbodianpd 8888edl g qpigrian(glsé Clients sa§), 6 86038sqp: god

238:3[g8:e[03pE[gdoopdn
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Our footprint

MAP OF MYANMAR WITH THE STATES / REGIONS TO HIGHLIGHT WHERE TMH IS OPERATING

Our clients
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We built 60 new towers TMH maintains 800 towers for More than 95% of our Clients
its clients, all across Myanamr are satisfied with our services
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fiber

Highlights
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The revenues from our fiber operations reached MMK 0.6 billion for FY18-19 (vs MMK 1.3

billion last year).

Our fiber operations cover both construction work and maintenance work. Last year, we
maintained over 1000+ km of fiber for MPT in Yangon, Mandalay and Magway regions.
TMH built 500+ km fiber for its Myanmar GT Broadband , its associate during the last
financial year. In addition, we built five core equipment rooms for them.

TMH invested massively to develop its assets: 99% of the optical fiber installed last year
will be owned by TMH’s associate: GT Broadband.

TMH’s associate, Myanmar GT Broadband plans to expand its business in 7 states and
regions to reinforce its footprint in the coming years.

Our bandwidth capacity reached 14 GBPS.

TMH’s associate, Myanmar GT Broadband serves more than 10,000 clients.

The number of clients is dramatically increased from last year due to our ability to serve
our customers, better.

og$eodadel odom apbefiqpivolaegaopd (0.¢) Brd8udoyd 3208 §32051 (Jooq-0e g€ ofeged (0.9)
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4 Revenues from our Fiber Our customers' base )
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Mobile

Highlights

TMH operates 2 sites to manufacture prepaid top-up cards for MPT. Last year, 69.1 million
cards were produced.

We produced all kinds of prepaid top-up cards such as 1 in 1 cards, 5in 1 cards and 3 in 1
cards. In our factory, qualified people are working to ensure the quality of our production
process from printing to wrapping.

We are distributing prepaid top-up cards in Yangon East-Region and Northern Shan State
where we cover 18 townships.

To generate new revenues, TMH launched a mobile app: Thi P P Lar which is an unique
platform to provide promotion, event, discount information of merchants and shops from
Yangon and Mandalay. Subscriber can easily find their interest by categories, distance and
rating etc..Thi PP Lar will become a one stop channel between merchants and costumers
This mobile app was launched in 14 February 2019 and 20,000 people downloaded the app
so far.

We provided promotion program such as lucky draw for customer attraction and on the
other hand we managed this mobile app to be more informative and more attractive for
customer retention .

TMH opgaBaopd MPT ¢8:66[5p0000500050p6908 32006¢589[¢ copSucbaopdn woalsdon maoded: k.o
2081 000500632001

R§e0503 opgadaopd 1in 1 Card, 5in 1 card ¢ 3 in 1 card sso§eomneg[gpdonodaadj§odooodapd
aqo>§opdn ag§e03503 aglgbanod 0oodapba0o50n5§o0pS 3a6pbeacaggob8eomoscobigpist ¢8[gE: oo
053:[gE:qpiapdeamagd§oopdi

oglpeoBo opgaRaond ghopgeseq,§EisbadigpbsdSelqiBed [.edE: oo [B.5050p8 ehueglipberobap:
[s§[sjeespEeqdloogdu

o€egoobogfes 893E: Application 006903 8odsoodewsdaopdn a3(GiGaoo: (Thi P P Lar) Application 205
8m8sC gse0sd 0rSogods Bodeoodeepliqap: §3a8m00dgpist eagpegEgeapiqeomnagiadypist
00520052009 32[05320009gP:3E0EPBOR50Rd: Gacnaddeuiea Application [gdoopSi saadigiopqp:
:es[g¢ 8803805080000 FogEdmLNSYPRHGE3ee22308056205 copdieoms d8esadEeomasepst
Dop:eo:d  cdodgeaddcopdieomts  eeplimsel  rating  saqeaodcopbieomts  cgudopgd
§pegsCaopbiadGfdeon:  (Thi P P Lar) Application 2005 0p§0000gpisC  oodugopgpsenios
soodogudeusepdone stop channel 0odg[gdaon§Edloogds

3G (Thi P P Lar) Application o3 joog 958 coesddl§ oG qodegopt ©00E80580055l00p5!
peOlEs J0000 9 G3lE:pbLRF[Fo0RSH

pSeondodmes[gé Application 0333ad:ganeogSodedidesdeugéinyadeonn u§digtieadaodqpgrad[gt:
2[g€ cLodGad§osgpod ©00505038:036:000:8Eq§8agi0530005¢P38HEEsME BdagoSoopS
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(" Revenues from our Prepaid Card Number of prepaid top-up )
Selling (MMK billions) cards manufactured (millions of units)
5 4.20
4 80 69.1 68.5
60
3 2.10
> 1.7 40 30
0 0
\_ FY 18-19 FY 17-18 FY 16-17 FY 18-19 FY 17-18 FY 16-17 )

Our footprint
MAP OF MYANMAR WITH THE STATES / REGIONS TO HIGHLIGHT WHERE TMH IS OPERATING

Production

Distribution

(Key figures )
- L
o
We manufactured Our new app has been MPT awarded us again
over 69.1 million downloaded 20,000 times a prize for the quality of
\_ pre-paid top cards for MPT since Feb 2019 our collaboration )
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Highlights

300+ people are working at TMH, and our team is extremely skilled: 45% of them are

engineers or holding different management roles.

99% of our staff are Myanmar citizen.

Our turnover rate is low (10%), like our absenteeism rate (6.8%) and the satisfaction of our
employees is high (90%).

TMH is investing in training more people, with more resources.

No accident occurred during the last financial year.

Among the people promoted to a higher position within our company, 53% were women.
We mainly provided safety training program and professional training program to our
engineers to ensure they are operating their work safety and effenciently.

Staff welfares programs are arranged according to the plan by HR department.

Outstanding staffs are awarded yearly based on the performance appraisals.

(Key figures )
.n. [ ]
6{}3
300+ people are working for 45% of our people are 90% of our employees are
TMH engineers or holding a satisfied with their work
management position
@ | <
28% of our employees are 17 persons were promoted, of Each trainee received on
women which 53% were women average 40 hours of training
0 accident in our workplace Our absenteeism rate is 6.8% TMH managed one case of
\_ fraud last year )
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Highlights

TMH 0pgB03€ 0§00d:edIE:p00 co 020§ 008:6800Eq|05§ 00051 0§ codezalamsel 6§ % a0pd 2aEqiE8omgp:
(0800p05)B50836ea3Cep 008gP:od cobieaontaesapqpgdaopd

o§co&sqpzel R % 2005 [§§en8EEamqpigBlogoopSi

opgael  turnover rate o0pSo0%  esmcbeaypspdicloogdn  o§cobiqrdopadssiood 6.o% o&§Es
0§0083gPselicpdcS:Een0pCs Bodems04§[gEiaopd @u% §ooRdr

TMH  opgaooph  ofoobimaquaoged  §8qpigprg>  coboohigpidqeo:Roqisl  aoboog:Gafgé:aBéep
wqgiaa{abap: afieqroierogedafidiapboEagodfioops

[B:36000 908038 weoSonsofgdyrzegpiadioaddd

opg§) pagiopiodeobiqpiaasadenp copS saqjoodiqp3bacpb

REeobBmgdaopd  =:Eqt8ungpimogodeoimEndlfefeoqs gdgoS[G: Safety Training &
Professional Training qps 3gjeosdloopSu

HR gpsell Bodgea03E: 0§cobsgpsancgad Staff welfares sa8s0dqp: 6s0nEgoddloopdi
Performance appraisal ¢dl¢oopd[B: 200660503Eqp5 comEigSeamno§aodiqp:a’ e’ ey §oopdi

Breakdown of our workforce by\ Evolution of the number of
position women in our workforce
50
40
30
20
10
0
FY18-19 FY17-18 FY16-17
B Engineers/Managers Supervisors/Staff B Engineers/Managers [l Supervisors/Staff
B Workers/Employess ) \ B Workers/Employess )
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Organization and policies

Our HR department is responsible for defining and enforcing the rules for managing our workforce
effectively. They also ensure that TMH is complying with all the relevant laws related to labour. To
do so, they update every year our Employee Handbook. This document is shared and distributed to
our employees: it gives them clear guidance about their rights and duties. They are all encouraged
to contact the HR department if they have any questions.

HR gr5000507ga36l 0§006:32880:03 320§:§22860538EqS 0p5:qi:0pbinbigp: 2005005[gE:5¢ BodsnoyEodieolgts
03320305 02208§0l00pS1 TMH orgaBooobooabedEepaacodaowmspoeaygpiséennd cBodsneamntgnb§tes HR grsm
0200§096802Eg056 205 1038wdes0rEq$ HR grs00p508008:005:qiP:c005803 $608 [gqEes:dqdloopSio§codopSy)
Dec00SBonE 0§cobsgpsel 3EgEanglanaaeqps codesiomosgpimn[gadadsnoEadiqepd pr§logrigedgp:dl doaopSio
£008:0p5:qD:0005803 018602503 0§00&igpiEndi0003 geocuiBiioScodigpieacsyl culgdioap 0obdadegilon HR
G593 90050300601 g§:8Edo0d1

Training

We rely on the skills of our people to deliver the solutions and services requested by our clients.
Therefore, TMH decided to increase its investment to train our people: our training expenditures
reached MMK 12.5 million last year compared to MMK 5 million the year before. As a result, we
trained more people: 33% of our workforce was trained last year, and each trainee received on
average 40 hours of training.

RISeond3Bigmieqeoopd Clients qpion comE:adamneom o§eeonEaqpist vdcSigpiaa: [gpdsopSieudEaSemagSe
0050808 codigp:el cpbediog&ioy€esacd o€ eonpSesdlaopSi ddelogpEangaBoopd training 520305 38qE:8:algi0bas
addg05300p5n Training $503053203:080503 §&:0000q€ 056008560 [gSeroqbeg § 20§00 §Feo5c0pdB:dc00m
Da0sbRE  0y60siedE: 0 .5 0§08 035300 IqeosseslgE 0Scobimeqmozed 83 qpigego  training
60288320051 0§codemalamsel pp% o3 training cu:8ERB: 0odB:gCqbigeisC $0§ go 9§ training q§doopSe

-

Percentage of people Training expenditures
trained (MMK millions)
35% e 14 12.5
30% 12
25% 22% 10
20% 8
- 13% . 5
10% I I 4 3
5% 2 I .
0% 0
L FY18-19  FY17-18  FY16-17 FY18-19  FY17-18  FY16-17 )
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Safety

The risks related to safety are a real concern for TMH. We may be requested to go and work in
conflicted areas to build or maintain towers. When our management assesses the risks related to a
project, safety risks are always prioritized.

TMH 250305 cp6csigEad(§Bodqeatsss 0odo00d00pd ad:gpSCalgyps (risk) 20p0 Fa0§00mud B:§6gudeponde
[g020p51 cg§cododemas(ye [gooosHsE 3200532894 feoresepeatogpiapl ognieepodo§eascniycuigs comEiady
qP§eon§EdaopSicngaBeiddesieq:aopd 86038:0069038086pogE el cBBoSqgdEapadig8cealy (Safety
risk) §o§o3B:onscoBodoopSn

009858038 v6esiganogtieeondoneolgdyrigtidoadddh

Inclusive workplace

We do not tolerate any form of discrimination. TMH promotes people based on their performance
and results. Within our company, 45% of our workforce hold an engineer or management position.
This reflects the quality of our team. It is a competitive advantage to deliver high-added value
services. We are proud to have 20% of women among our engineers and managers. This diversity is
for us critical to provide our clients with better solutions.

Last year, 17 people were given the opportunity to advance their career, and 53% of the people
promoted were women.

Our employees are pleased to work with us: their satisfaction rate reached 90% last year. Our
turnover rate reached 10% last year (compared to 13% in 2017/2018).

RI$602503 apeaRapd ©pdSa0pd3[grienndedgdraBeadaopbidgagadepbuuradill mgaBaodd ofcodigpisaepaniodse
£300epogt  GEo3el  ROESA3EQRDSE  qrodypidameac(gdBinnbeemtdloopdi  ofcodimalamiel g% aopd
:2Eq8omgp:  (Bewpod)  BoefFeqidlep  omofqpid  codiesonfesopgpigdoopdi  dBsagodaopd
og§eond03oscobigpel  2aqpdaagtiodcolundeoGieaqpdancagy  ofesonygpicuiepogoopdizacoondennnondy
[gde0dloopdi opgaBel diversity §go005 38comEig§eomnosesmyapdesiqpicida$aacgod saon:macqs Al dloogdi

0098580080062 0q BsaBepan:oBelgpeodffi GE:03050 g% a0pd sadjEoodsqp: [gblogoopS

pgBdoScodigpeeicpdediglanogl: Bodemysbed[gt:oopd eo% §oopbimgadel turnover rate o5 (jooq-oe 0zé
0p% §32025)00% 6300560qRsP0:Alo0RdH
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Society
Highlights

e TMH pays its fair share of tax to support the Government’s efforts: we paid MMK685,371,196
last year .

e We are supporting communities, and we donated MMK 21 million to various philanthropic
initiatives: we participated in the Clean Yangon challenge to help cleaning Yangon City, and
protecting our environment. TMH also contributed to plant trees during a dedicated event.

e We recycled 32% of our waste to minimize our environmental footprint.

* 0p8c00503 TMH opgaBoopd 3a8:qei[050bigqp0? 6oo05de0:q§ 208onEgoneamangiownsan: 6ueson
aqEd§ep woatsdan 6og),pq0,086 0q6 GLIEEEFClooESH

* [geBopcpoosa:  GomnnddeuieseImgBgdopdsIenypey  vau3cmgIERdigPd oybeg  (jo)oosiek
0| 3§:33l00051 §8§0p8(§, 0&gEieqesC 200m000508:0qE omnzudeqadzacya’ Clean Yangon Challenge
03¢ Jo€320p51 TMH 0pgaBoopd 2060E053206:3280:qpi09E0R5: Clo€esmrEgodddlongdi

+  Reod03el 0odosiIEadEepaddndgypaa: cagpgfEas gSodugRdiqpisi (p j%)sa3: [gScopdSsaadig§oopd

(Key figures )
I \:/
We donated MMK21 million We recycled 32% of TMH paid MMK 685 million
\for our philanthropic activities  the waste we produced last year )

TMH’s Corporate Social Responsibility

Our corporate social responsibility is not limited to our philanthropic efforts. We consider that
paying our taxes, reducing our environmental footprint or offering good, safe, and rewarding
working conditions (see page XX) are part of our corporate social responsibility.

RI8e00503 cpuaBel 0o50§:CBEP 0M0EMIGEEYISGEIE 0aVBoCRECSIPYE P§a0odogE: ool IS

6eo[gls  0050§:0yEBEPRBIDegP:d  eagpygl: (Bewrod) eomEisadl§e§B: Seelgrodefeor pSefige
:efgIeesqp: 00p5680005(gE:032005 a0l uadusioyCadlepomonsureecntgadae 068050063E: [gddlaoSi

Our philanthropic contribution

We gave MMK 19 million to various charitable initiatives last year. We donated 7,750,000 MMK to
the Daw Khin Kyi Foundation, and 550,00 MMK to the NLD AIDS Center to support the people
suffering from AIDS. Our main contribution (8,300,000 MMK) aimed to support the victims of floods.

0$deomsdon ageododopgaRaopd veudonnpdeSimdiidk p|dlsdgtienogod oydeg (op) 20§:0303 adgSAlooRd
Rl§e005032005 edlealfogpSewntes:qtad (o) odsE 3a¢r000:88mea8 3o3q|0el 9d3a:mye0tsy opoodeepd
0Com§ 6035080:6560pgP:ada] (§90000) oxd cvdE:adloopdi FagPsdip|ElSig (9P00000 00) ¢d GaEIEE
[gpSopgpezan: Goonodde0:eS [§3looRd!
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Fiscal contribution

We paid over MMK 685,371,196last year. The split of the tax paid is mentioned below:

Commercial tax 446,993,558.00
Corporate Income tax 218,422,241.00
Stamp duty 2,968,800.00
Personal Income tax 16,986,597.00

R)$602503 mrgB0Rd g&deomsdon 6og),pq0,0e6 tybemP 998c0d:ee0ES oS
;gSegadjdiod 63005038 cudlgoonaoSi

op$ogadeh G556,£E099°

ofoggs Jo®1GJJiJG0

05986661898 Jie6e,000

0088:qE:08aggs o6,@o6,8eq
[

Tax paid by TMH (MMK millions)

B Commercial tax B Corporate Income Tax

| Stamp Duty Personal Income Tax

.

Our environmental footprint

We are trying to reduce our environmental footprint as much as we can. We produced 3,800 kg of

waste last year, and we managed to recycle 1,200 kg.

RISeodBmeadel  0odoSiyIEadEepad8ndgypia: 0058E0g eagRgIEYESfaoESE welsbon  apEeox5 03005
88000gp5:6dIE: (pon0) 03c30qd 0ged§3G: (0 joo) 03c8ogdsm: [gfcopdmaadiges 8oP8ESA
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DAW KHIN KYI FOUNDATION

¥

Certificate of Appreciation

This is to acknowledge, with great appreciation, TMH Telecom Public
Company Limited's contribution of USS 5,000/~ as a platinum sponsorship, for
the fundraising event held on $* October 2018, organized by the SEDONA
hotel, in support of the Daw Khin Kyi Foundation.

Ay NI )
Daw Aung San Sua Kyi
Chairperson
Daw Khin Kyl Foundation
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NON-FINANCIAL REPORTING

BUSINESS

KPls Unit Value (FY 18-19) GRI Standard SDGs
BTS
Number of clients for BTS services Number 3 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of BTS constructed Number 60 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of BTS maintained by TMH Number 800 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of people connected to mobile network Number 422 400 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of people connected to high speed mobile network Number 120 000 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of performance issues / service disruptions % <1% GRI 416 SDG 9
Customer satisfaction rate % >99% TMH SDG 9
Number of awards Number 4 TMH SDG 9
FFTX / Broadband
Number of clients for optical fiber services Number >10000 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of optical fiber installed GT km >2000 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of optical fiber installed Other km 15 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of housholds connected Number >9000 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of business connected Number >1700 GRI 102 SDG 9
Data capacity (bandwidth) GBPS 14 GRI 102 SDG 9
Customer satisfaction rate % >95% TMH SDG 9
Mobile
Number of cards produced Number 69 125 480 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of downloads of the mobile app Number 20 000 GRI 102 SDG 9
Number of awards Number 1 TMH

SOCIETY

Tax
Commercial tax MMK 446 993 558 GRI 201 SDG 8
Corporate Income tax MMK 218422 241 GRI 201 SDG 8
Stamp duty MMK 2968 800 GRI 201 SDG 8
Personal Income tax MMK 16 986 597 GRI 201 SDG 8
Donation
Amount of philanthropic activities MMK 1400 000 GRI 203 SDG 8

Business ethic and responsibilities

Number of potential breach reported Number 1 GRI 205 SDG 16
Number of breach Number 1 GRI 205 SDG 16
Training hours provided to BOD members Hours 50 GRI 404 SDG 8
Number of BOD member trained Number 3 GRI 404 SDG 8
Transparency

Pwint Thit Sa Rank Number 15 TMH -
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PEOPLE
KPIs Unit Value (FY 18-19) GRI Standard SDGs
Work Place
Total number of headcount Number 306 GRI 102 SDG 8
Number of women Number 87 GRI 102 SDG 5
Number of managers / engineers Number 138 GRI 102 SDG 8
Number of female managers / engineers Number 27 GRI 102 SDG 5
Number of staff / supervisors Number 64 GRI 102 SDG 8
Number of female staff Number 35 GRI 102 SDG 5
Number of workers / employees Number 104 GRI 102 SDG 8
Number of female workers Number 25 GRI 102 SDG 5
Number of expatriate Number 4 GRI 102 SDG 8
% of local employee % 99% GRI 102 SDG 8
Number of departures Number 34 GRI 401 SDG 8
Number of resignation Number 32 GRI 401 SDG 8
Number of termination Number 2 GRI 401 SDG 8
Staff turnover (%) % 10% GRI 401 SDG 8
Employee engagement (satisfaction) % 90% TMH SDG 8
Training
Total training hour Hours 1544 GRI 404 SDG 8
Total number of people trained Number 102 GRI 404 SDG 8
Average training hours provided to each trainee Hours 15 GRI 404 SDG 8
Training expenditure MMK 12 500 000 GRI 404 SDG 8
Working Condition
Number of accidents Number - GRI 403 SDG 8
Absenteism rate % 6,8% GRI 403 SDG 8
Frequency rate % - GRI 403 SDG 8
Fatality rate % - GRI 403 SDG 8
Talent Development
Total number of new hires Number 23 GRI 401 SDG 8
Number of women recruited Number 9 GRI 401 SDG 5
Number of promotion Number 17 GRI 405 SDG 5
Number of women promoted Number 9 GRI 405 SDG 5
PLANET
Energy
Electricity consumption kwh 3700 GRI 302 SDG 12
Waste
Waste produced Kg 3800 GRI 306 SDG 12
Waste recycled Kg 1200 GRI 306 SDG 12
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Financial statements

TMH Telecom Public Company Limited
Financial Statements March, 2019.

Currency — Myanmar kyats

TMH Telecom Company Limited

= Statement of Management’s Responsibility Statement of Auditor’s Report

=  Financial Statements As at and for the year ended 31st March: 2019 Statement of Financial
Position

= Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income Statement of Changes In
Equity

= Statement of Cash Flows

= Notes to the Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

Being Directors of the “TMH Telecom Public Company Limited” do hereby-state that, in the opinion of the
Directors, the accompanying Accounts made up to 31st March 2019 Schedules and Notes to the Accounts
are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and of the results
of the Company for the period ended on the date of this statement according to the Section 258 of the

Myanmar Companies Law.

We believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due and alt account

receivables are good and recoverable. .
Nang Lai Yi Soe Lwin
Executive Director Managing Director
TMH Telecom Public Co., Ltd. TMH Telecom Public Co., Ltd.
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TIN LATT

Auditing, Accounting and Consultancy Services

Ph: 09250290764, 095092740, 0973241900, 01-580092

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
TMH TELECOM PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TMH TELECOM PUBLIC Co., Ltd, (the
“Company”) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31% March 2019, and the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows of the group for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) and the provisions of the Myanmar
Companies Law. This responsibilities include; designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selection and applying appropriate accounting policies, and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit is in accordance with Myanmar Standard on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirement and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosure in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also include evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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TIN LATT

Auditing, Accounting and Consultancy Services

Ph: 09250290764, 095092740, 0973241900, 01-580092

Unqualified Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statement of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance
with the Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Law so
as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March 2019 and of the
results, changes equity and cash flows of the Company for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of Myanmar Companies Law, we also report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and
(b) Books of account have been maintained by the Company as required by the Myanmar Companies

Law 2017.

P, R.L,D.B.L
BRIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

For U Tin Latt U léN( .
Certified Public AcEolrfitarf* /) R-AH.C!
&

Date: . .2019
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TMH Telecom Public Co.,Ltd

Statement of Financial Position As at 31st March 2019

2019 2018

Note MMK MMK
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 804,108,675 505,471,049
Other Investments 4 200,485,000
Investment in Joint Venture 5 2,639,200,000
Investment in Project 6 1,529,710,752 4,440,642,252
Total Non Current Assets 5,173,504,427 4,946,113,301
Current Asset
Inventory - Prepaid Card 7 2,701,865,186 2,286,102,258
Inventory - Project 1,307,873,716
Trade & Receivable 8 6,300,522,569 6,066,707,295
Cash_and_Cash_Equivalent 9 1,101,675,362 4,237,620,064
Tender & Bank Guarantee Deposit 19,650,203 38,372,016
Deferred Expense - Project 10 556,546,211
Prepaid Expense 11 203,233,500 1,864,000,655
Prepaid - Income and Commercial Tax 55,518,657 399,998,279
Total Current Assets 12,246,885,404 14,892,800,567
Total Assets 17,420,389,831 19,838,913,868
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Equity & Liabilities

Paid Up Capital 14,559,798,000 14,559,798,000
Reserves (71,246,500)

Retained Earnings 952,013,740 1,809,910,017
Net Profit for The Year 633,900,923 1,680,113,013
Total Equity 16,074,466,163 18,049,821,030
Current Liability

Trade & Other Payable 12 680,507,869 816,867,828
Provision - Income tax 218,422,241 475,203,762
Provision - Commercial Tax 446,993,558 497,021,248
Total Liability 1,345,923,668 1,789,092,838
Equity & Liabilities 17,420,389,831 19,838,913,868
The notes on Page -  are an integral part of the Financial Statements Authenticated by Directors

Nang Lai Yi Soe

Executive Director

TMH Telecom Public Co., Ltd.

b
///

a Lwin
Managing Director
'MH Telecom Public Co., Ltd.
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TMH Telecom Public Co.,Ltd

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

for the Year Ended 31st March 2019

2019 2018
Note MMK MMK
Revenue 13 8,939,871,162 9,940,424,952
Cost of Goods Sold 14 (4,869,957,058) (4,358,820,344)
Gross Profit 4,069,914,104 5,581,604,608
Other Income 84,699,174 111,061,506
Expense
Selling & Distribution Expense (413,423,601) (124,313,048)
Administration Expense 15 (2,649,078,471) (3,092,334,254)
Finance Cost (10(;,000,000)
Profit before Tax 1,092,111,206 2,376,018,812
Tax Expense (458,210,283) (695,905,799)
Net Profit after Tax 633,900,923 1,680,113,013
Other Comprehensive Income For the Year
Fair value adjustment of Investments (71,246,500)
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year 562,654,423 1,680,113,013
Earning Per Share
Basic EPS (MMK) 16 52 138
The notes on Page -  are an integral part of the Financial Statements Authenticated by Directors
Nang Lai Yi Soe
Executive Director Managing Directer
TMH Telecom Public Co., Ltd. TMH Talecom Public Co., Ltd.
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TMH Telecom Public Co.,Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31st March 2019

Share Capital Reserves Retained Earning Total
No of Ordinary
chares Kyats Kyats Kyats Kyats
FY (2018~19)
Beginning of financial year 12,212,906 14,559,798,000 3,490,023,030 18,049,821,030
Prior year adjustment - - (95,428,090) (95,428,090)
Restated profit 12,212,906 14,559,798,000 - 3,394,594,940 17,954,392,940
Issue Share -
Dividend paid ( 12,212,906 S- Qty *200Ks ) (2,442,581,200) (2,442,581,200)
Net Profit / (Loss)for the year 633,900,923 633,900,923
Other Comprehensive Income (71,246,500) (71,246,500)
End of finandial year 12,212,906 14,559,798,000 (71,246,500) 1,585,914,663 16,074,466,163
No of Ordinary
shares Kyats Kyats Kyats Kyats
FY (2017~18)

Beginning of financial year 9,347,800 9,491,700,000 2,443,243,514 11,934,943,514
Prior year adjustment - - (356,677,497) (356,677,497)
Restated profit 9,347,800 9,491,700,000 2,086,566,017 11,578,266,017
Issue Share 2,865,106 5,068,098,000 5,068,098,000
Dividend paid ( 11,066,240 S- Qty *25 Ks ) (276,656,000) (276,656,000)
Net Profit / (Loss)for the year 1,680,113,013 1,680,113,013

End of financial year 12,212,906 14,559,798,000 3,490,023,030 18,049,821,030
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TMH Telecom Public Co.,Ltd

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2019

Cash Flow from Operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before Tax
Adjustments for;

Prior year adjustment

Depreciation for the year

Disposal Loss

Interest income

Investment Income

Interest Paid

Tax Expense

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in Current Assets :
Inventories

Receivable From Project & Customer
Prepaid expenses

Bank Guarantee Deposit

Increase / (decrease) in Current liabilities :

Trade & other payable

Cash Flow from Operating activities
Interest Paid

Prepaid Income & Commercial Tax

Tax Paid

Net cash used in Operating activities
Cash Flow from Investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment
Proceeds From Property, plant & equipment
Purchase of Investment Securities
Proceeds From Investment Securities
Interest Income

Investment Income

Net cash used in Investing activities

2019 2018
MMK MMK
1,092,111,206 2,155,316,775
(95,428,090) (356,677,498)
87,374,680 65,954,326
706,667
(83,599,174) (43,000,831)
(1,100,000) (63,910,016)
100,000,000
(458,210,283) (475,203,762)
541,148,339 1,383,185,661

(1,723,636,644)
(233,815,274)

(546,880,834)
1,295,838,247

1,104,220,944 1,708,597,694
18,721,813 11,000,000
(136,359,959) (2,896,968,416)
(429,720,781) 954,772,352
(100,000,000)
344,479,622 (230,406,036)
(306,809,211) 39,424,204
(392,050,371) 663,790,520
(386,012,306) (141,698,755)
430,000
(2,094,400,000)
63,910,016
83,599,174 43,000,831
1,100,000
(301,313,132) (2,128,757,908)
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Cash Flow from Financing activities

Proceeds From Share

Dividend paid

Cash Paid for Loan

Net cash used in Financing activities

Net Increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equipment
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the year

5,068,098,000
(2,442,581,200) (276,656,000)
(1,000,000,000)

(2,442,581,200) 3,791,442,000
(3,135,944,702) 2,326,474,612
4,237,620,064 1,911,145,452
1,101,675,362 4,237,620,064

83



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 REUEREEINENCIYTIS

84

TMH Telecom Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Currency — Myanmar Kyat

1. General Information

TMH Telecom Company Limited was incorporated as a private company in the Union of
Myanmar under the Myanmar Companies Act on August 21, 2007.

The registered office of the company is No.(18/A), Koh Min Koh Chin Road, Bahan
Township, Yangon Division.

The Financial Statements are expressed in Myanmar Kyat and relate to the year from 1,
April 2018 to 31, Mar 2019.

The name of Company was changed from Tah Moe Hnye Chan TharTun Wai Thar
Company Limited to TMH Telecom Company Limited, dated on 12.1.2016.

The TMH Telecom Company Limited has been transformed from private company limited
to public company limited, dated on 25.5.2016.

The principle business activities of the company are

- Production of Top Up Cards

- Distribution of mobile Sim cards and prepaid Top Up cards

- Auto Telecom Exchange Installation & Maintenance Services
- BTS Tower Construction & Maintenance Services

- Site Acquisition & Technical Installation Services

- Fiber Cable Construction & Maintenance Services

- Power System Installation & Maintenance Services

- Telecom Equipment Installation & Maintenance Services
- Wiring & Cabling Services
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2. Preparation of Accounting Policies
A. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Myanmar Accounting
Standards (MAS) under the historical cost convention.

Certain prior period amounts in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the current period’s presentation.

B. Foreign Currency Translation
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items includes in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’).The
financial statements are presented in Myanmar Kyat, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

(2) Transactions and balance
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transaction and from the translation at year- end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income
statement.

C. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in uniformity with MFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumption that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense. Actual result may differ
from these estimates. Estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.

D. Revenue Recognition

- The company was received prepaid card profit at 6% of MPT prepaid cards sold.

- Printing incomes are recognized when the printing income is certain to be received.

- Project incomes are recognized when the company satisfies the performance obligation
by transferring control of a promised goods or services to the customers.
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E. Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

F. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, computed using the first-in, first-out
method, and net realizable value. Any adjustments to reduce the cost of inventories to their net

realizable value are recognized in earnings in the current period.

G. Property , Plant & Equipment

Property, plant & equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation or
accumulated amortization.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives
of these assets. The depreciation rates of these assets are as follows,

Factory building 10%
Machinery & Accessories 10%
Tools & Project Accessories 10%
Motor Vehicles 10%
Office equipment 10%
Furniture & Fixture 10%
Computer & Printer 20%
Electrical Equipment 20%

H. Fair Value Measurements

The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities
that are required to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal or most
advantageous market in which the Company would transact and the market based risk
measurements or assumptions that market participants would use to price the asset or liability,
such as risks inherent in valuation techniques, transfer restrictions and credit risk. Fair value is
estimated by applying the following hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair
value into three levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level

of input that is available and significant to the fair value measurement.
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I. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits in various local

banks. The Company believes its existing balances of cash, cash equivalents will be sufficient to
satisfy its working capital needs, capital asset purchases, outstanding commitments and other

liquidity requirements associated with its existing operations over the next 12 months.

J. Ordinary Shares
Only Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new ordinary shares are recognized in profit or loss in the year of issuance of new
ordinary shares.

K. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or contractive

obligation as result of past events.

L. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
company to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. Otherwise, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

M. Other Investment
These Financial instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income and are valued at fair value including directly attributable transaction costs. Changes
in fair value are recognized in equity and dividends receivable from equity assets are
recognized in the income statement.

N. Prepaid Expense
Prepaid expenses are initially recorded as assets that have future economic benefits,
and are expensed at the time when the benefits are realized.

O. Income Tax
All tax expenses are current taxes and recognized in the income statement. Current
tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

P. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders
by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period .



S£9'801'408 085'¥82'CT LIT'8TL'bT 800'80L'bE 921'569'9t ¥18'9bT's ¥SO'€T0'L6T SL6'Ty1'STy 000°00t'S 000°000€9 6T0C 1Bl 3e duejeg

€£6'025'€8C 029120’ 6ST'vEL0T 769°9€6'CT 09/8€L"9€ w0'sTT'T 926'11006 G//'T18'STT 000°009°CT 6T0C He 3e 0uejeg

R |esodsiq
089'bLE'L8 000'9€5'T 085’909y 000°0£L"y 00£'0%5'9T 00%'£89 000899'8¢ 000'99£'8T 000°008'T - uonippy
€62'9b1°961 079'5€S"T 6/5'LT8'S 769991°8 090'861°0C W9’ LTs'T 9T6'€PE'T9 S/L'9bL'98 000°0080T 8107 |1dY 1e 3duejeq

R uonea.idag pajejnwnddy

8v9'629°/80'T  002'9S€E'ST 9/T'781'5T 00L'v%9' Ly 988'cer’e8 958'19€'L 086'20'£8C 052'559°0bS 000°000°8T 000°000°€9 6T0¢ Je e 3dueleg
2 ) |lesodsia
]
m 90£'210°98¢ - 0S€'198°C - 000°0Z8'T 956'0TT'T 000022 000005°6£E - - uonippy
I
b WELT9'T0L 002°95€'ST 926’0622 004'¥b9" Lt 9881918 006'052°9 086'+0£'98C 0S.'SST'T9T 000°000'8T 000°000°€9 810¢ |l1dy 3e duejeg
©
‘S
c
©
£ 150D
L
S31I0SS0Y
juawdinb3 X4 g J2Ld 8 juswdinb3 S9110SSaMY B buipjing
1ejol pa3foid 9PIYaA pueq
1ea1393|3 aunyuing Jandwo) 0VWO Aiauyoen Aioyey
8 sjooL

juswdinb3 @ jue|d “Apedold s

(o))
—
o
~
)
[*]
—
o
~
T
(2
(@)
a
w
(52
-
<
)
z
P4
<

88



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 RUELEEINCICGENS

4.0ther Investments

FMI Share
Mineral Development Bank

Total

5.Investment in Joint Venture

Myanmar GT

Total

6.Investment in Project

Tower Project
CCTV Project

Fiber Project

Total

100,485,000

100,000,000

200,485,000

2,639,200,000

2,639,200,000

663,920,008
283,836,367

581,954,377

1,529,710,752
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7.Inventory - Prepaid Card

Qty
Item Name Amount ( Ks)
1000ks 3000ks | 5000ks | 10000ks

Prepaid 462,407 | 140,069 | 130,480 10,034 1,537,232,760
Hanset 1 27,000
E-Top Up 1,103,455,926
Sim Card ( 500 ks per 1 card ) 122,299 61,149,500
Total 2,701,865,186

8.Trade & Receivable

Receivable From Project
- BTS Project 2,582,809,859
- Fiber Project 741,707,578
- Mobile Project 577,032,074
- Other Project 83,112,724
Receivable From MPT (Fuel & Meter Bill) 521,611,436

Receivable From Customer

Receivable From Other

Total

1,772,365,283

21,883,616

6,300,522,569
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9.Cash_and_Cash_Equivalent

Cash in hand _ Ks
Cashinhand _$
Cash at bank _ Ks
Cash at bank _ $

Total

10.Deferred Expense - Project

Pun Hlaing Project

MOHA Project

Thi P P Lar Application Project
Fortune Shop House Project
GT Project ( Monywa )

Mytel Project

Total

11.Prepaid Expense

Advance for Office Use

Deposit to MPT ( Mobile Money & Security )

Prepaid Expenses - Office Rental

Prepaid Expenses - Other

Total

Kyats USsD
Ex Rate 1 USD = 1515 Ks

404,466,416
808,957 $ 534

574,240,257
122,159,733 $ 80,639
1,101,675,362 81,173

2,557,125
11,117,100
24,181,580
28,516,589

146,608,200

343,565,617

556,546,211

80,236,704

20,000,000

41,576,133

61,420,662

203,233,500

91



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 REUEREEINENCIYTIS

92

12.Trade & Other payable

Accrued Expenses 39,744,543
Deferred Project Income 61,058,213
Payable To Sub-Contractor 142,892,559
Payable To Staff Salary, SSB Fee & Salary Income Tax 199,312,553
Payable To MPT ( for inventory purchase ) 237,500,000
Total 680,507,869
13.Revenue
2019 2018
BTS Project 6,069,869,172 6,554,627,129
Fiber Project 961,191,957 1,261,221,796
Mobile Project 1,694,854,032 2,124,576,026
Other Project 213,956,002
Total 8,939,871,162 9,940,424,951
14.Cost of Goods Sold
2019 2018
Project - Expense 4,688,585,509 3,930,350,889
Production Cost 181,371,549 428,469,445
Total 4,869,957,058 4,358,820,334
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15.Administration Expense

Renovation and maintenance expenses 37,424,350
ISO Payment 10,003,000
Donation Charges 13,160,850
Listing Expense 18,313,602
Meeting & Conference 20,913,510
Marketing Penetrating Expenses 68,506,588
Professional fees 90,043,000
Utilities 119,155,205
Car Rental & Convenience Expense 120,816,700
Travelling and related costs 161,221,820
Office Rental 275,372,914
Other Expense 122,395,476
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 87,374,680
Director’s remuneration 67,200,000
Employee Benefit Expenses 1,437,176,775

Total 2,649,078,471

16. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company is

based on the Following data :

2019 2018
Net Profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity 633,900,923 1,680,113,013
Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding 12,212,906 12,212,906

Basic earnings per share ( MMK per share) 52 138
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